
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Children and Young People Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 

Date: Wednesday, 25 May 2022 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber, Level 2, Town Hall Extension 

 
Everyone is welcome to attend this committee meeting. 
 
There will be a private meeting for Members of the Committee at 1.30 pm in  
the Council Chamber. 
 

 

Access to the Public Gallery 
 

Access to the Public Gallery is on Level 3 of the Town Hall Extension, using the lift or 
stairs in the lobby of the Mount Street entrance to the Extension. There is no public 
access from any other entrance. 
 

Filming and broadcast of the meeting 
 

Meetings of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee are ‘webcast’. These 
meetings are filmed and broadcast live on the Internet. If you attend this meeting you 
should be aware that you might be filmed and included in that transmission. 

 
 

Membership of the Children and Young People 
Scrutiny Committee 

Councillors – 
The membership of the Committee will be confirmed at the Council meeting on 18 
May 2022.   
 
Co-opted Members -   
Mr G Cleworth, Miss S Iltaf, Ms K McDaid, Mrs J Miles, Dr W Omara and Ms L Smith 

Public Document Pack



Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Agenda 
 
1.   Urgent Business 

To consider any items which the Chair has agreed to have 
submitted as urgent. 
 

 

2.   Appeals 
To consider any appeals from the public against refusal to allow 
inspection of background documents and/or the inclusion of items 
in the confidential part of the agenda. 
 

 

3.   Interests 
To allow Members an opportunity to [a] declare any personal, 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they might have in 
any items which appear on this agenda; and [b] record any items 
from which they are precluded from voting as a result of Council 
Tax/Council rent arrears; [c] the existence and nature of party 
whipping arrangements in respect of any item to be considered at 
this meeting. Members with a personal interest should declare 
that at the start of the item under consideration.  If Members also 
have a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest they must 
withdraw from the meeting during the consideration of the item. 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held 
on 9 March 2022. 
 
To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Ofsted Subgroup 
held on 2 March 2022. 
 

Pages 
 7 - 18 

5.   Manchester Safeguarding Partnership (MSP) Annual Report 
2020/2021 
Report of Paul Marshall, Chair of the Children Executive Board 
 
The report provides an overview of what the MSP has done as a 
result of the safeguarding arrangements, and how effective these 
arrangements have been in practice. 
 

Pages 
 19 - 62 

6.   COVID-19 Update 
The Committee will receive a verbal update from the Director of 
Education. 
 

 

7.   Overview Report 
Report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
 
This report provides the Committee with details of key decisions 
that fall within the Committee’s remit and an update on actions 
resulting from the Committee’s recommendations. The report also 
includes the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee 
is asked to amend as appropriate and agree. 

Pages 
 63 - 72 



Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

 
Please note, there will be a Work Programming session at 
the rise of this meeting for Committee members only. 
 



Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Information about the Committee  

Scrutiny Committees represent the interests of local people about important issues 
that affect them. They look at how the decisions, policies and services of the Council 
and other key public agencies impact on the city and its residents. Scrutiny 
Committees do not take decisions but can make recommendations to decision-
makers about how they are delivering the Our Manchester Strategy, an agreed vision 
for a better Manchester that is shared by public agencies across the city. 
 

The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee reviews the services provided 
by the Council and its partners for young people across the city including education, 
early years, school standards and valuing young people.  
 
In addition to the elected members the Committee has seven co-opted member 
positions. These are: 
 

 Representative of the Diocese of Manchester – Vacant  

 Representative of the Diocese of Salford – Mrs Julie Miles 

 Parent governor representative – Dr Walid Omara 

 Parent governor representative – Ms Katie McDaid 

 Parent governor representative – Mr Gary Cleworth 

 Secondary sector teacher representative – Miss Saba Iltaf 

 Primary sector teacher representative – Ms Laura Smith 
 
The co-opted members representing faith schools and parent governors are able to 
vote when the Committee deals with matters relating to education functions. 
 

The Council wants to consult people as fully as possible before making decisions that 
affect them. Members of the public do not have a right to speak at meetings but may 
do so if invited by the Chair. If you have a special interest in an item on the agenda 
and want to speak, tell the Committee Officer, who will pass on your request to the 
Chair. Groups of people will usually be asked to nominate a spokesperson. The 
Council wants its meetings to be as open as possible but occasionally there will be 
some confidential business. Brief reasons for confidentiality will be shown on the 
agenda sheet.  
 
The Council welcomes the filming, recording, public broadcast and use of social 
media to report on the Committee’s meetings by members of the public. 
 

Agenda, reports and minutes of all Council Committees can be found on the 
Council’s website www.manchester.gov.uk 
 

Smoking is not allowed in Council buildings.  
 
Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 
3rd Floor, Town Hall Extension,  
Manchester, M60 2LA. 
 
 



Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Further Information 

For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact the Committee 
Officer:  
 
 Rachel McKeon 
 Tel: 0161 234 4497 
 Email: rachel.mckeon@manchester.gov.uk 
 
This agenda was issued on Tuesday, 17 May 2022 by the Governance and Scrutiny 
Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 2, Town Hall Extension (Library Walk 
Elevation), Manchester M60 2LA



This page is intentionally left blank



Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Reid – in the Chair 
Councillors Bano, Collins, Cooley, Foley, Hewitson, Lovecy, McHale and Nunney 
  
Co-opted Non-Voting Members: 
Miss S Iltaf, Secondary Sector Teacher Representative 
Ms L Smith, Primary Sector Teacher Representative 
 
Also present: 
Councillor Bridges, Executive Member for Children’s Services 
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Abdullatif and Benham 
Mr G Cleworth, Parent Governor Representative 
Dr W Omara, Parent Governor Representative 
 
CYP/22/14  Ukraine 
 
The Chair expressed concern for the children affected by the invasion of Ukraine, 
including the families trying to flee the country.  In response to a Member’s question 
about what was being done to help children in this country to understand the situation 
and to allay their worries, the Director of Education advised that the BBC had created 
some Newsround clips to explain the situation, that the Healthy Schools Team had 
put together some information which was being circulated to schools for them to use 
and that this would be kept under review. 
 
CYP/22/15  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 9 February 2022. 
 
CYP/22/16 Special Educational Needs and Disability Local Area Inspection 
  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Education which highlighted the 
main areas of strength and areas for development identified in the joint inspection by 
Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission (CQC) to judge how effectively Manchester 
had implemented the special educational needs and disability reforms introduced in 
2014.  
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

 The inspection process; 

 The outcomes of the inspection; and 

 The letter from Ofsted and the CQC, which was appended to the report. 

Page 7

Item 4



 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

 To welcome the positive outcome of the inspection and to thank those 
involved for their hard work; 

 Were any of the identified areas for development unexpected and did the 
Council have the resources to accelerate work to improve the identified areas; 

 Home school transport, including travel training for children and young people; 
and 

 The importance of early identification of SEND. 
 
The Director of Education advised that there were no surprises within the letter from 
Ofsted and the CQC but that it was disappointing that one of the areas highlighted 
had been that the local offer was not understood by all parents.  She reported that a 
lot of work had been done to communicate the local offer to parents through a range 
of means, which Ofsted had acknowledged, and sometimes parents were not aware 
that the information they had found online was from the local offer website, which 
could have affected the way they answered the question that Ofsted had put to them; 
however, she acknowledged that the website could be improved and that the service 
would look at this.  She advised that addressing the areas for development was 
mainly about improving communication and improving efficiency and effectiveness in 
areas such as home school transport rather than requiring more resources.  The 
SEND Lead explained that travel training was part of the home school transport offer 
and included enabling young people to travel to college and work-based learning and 
travel for fun and leisure.  She informed Members of plans to expand the number of 
people who were skilled and qualified to provide travel training. 
 
In response to a Member’s question regarding school places, the Director of 
Education advised that the aim was that children would be able to go to their local 
school, whether mainstream or special, and that the move to more generic special 
school provision would support this; however, she advised that sometimes places 
were not available in the right place at the right time and, where a child with SEND 
was placed at a school further away, the Council would provide home school 
transport arrangements.  She highlighted the recent investment in increasing special 
school places, the new primary special free school in Blackley and the expansion of 
existing special schools and advised that this was an ongoing piece of work.  She 
also highlighted the excellent work of many mainstream schools in the city, which 
enabled children with SEND to thrive in the mainstream sector.  The Chair 
recognised the positive impact that being supported in mainstream schools had had 
on many children and young people, including those with moderate learning 
disabilities.   
 
The SEND Lead informed Members about the SEND Early Years Pathway, which 
involved a range of professionals and teams, including different types of early years 
settings, working on early intervention of SEND.  She reported that the percentage of 
children receiving health visitor checks at 9 months and two years was higher in 
Manchester than the national average and that these figures were monitored; 
however, she recognised the impact that the pandemic had had on early 
identification, as fewer parents had been engaging with services or sending their 

Page 8

Item 4



children to early years settings.  The Chair expressed concern about the impact of 
the pandemic on babies and young children.  She advised that the Committee would 
look at health visiting at a future meeting.  
 
Decision 
 
To consider health visiting at a future meeting. 
 
CYP/22/17 Manchester Sensory Support Service Commission 
 
The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director of Children and Education 
Services which outlined a proposal to commission a provider through an open tender 
process to run the Manchester Sensory Support Service. The report covered the 
statutory requirements for the sensory service, the governance arrangements 
explored and recommended an option for the future provision of the Sensory Support 
Service in order to deliver an outstanding service and improve outcomes for children 
and young people with sensory impairment. The budget for this service was £2.83 
million and there were no plans to reduce this budget as part of the proposals 
outlined in this report.  The Committee was invited to comment on the proposal prior 
to its submission to the Executive on 16 March 2022. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

 The national and local context; 

 Options considered for the future governance of the Sensory Support Service; 

 Factors that needed to be considered in the specification for a new managing 
organisation; 

 Performance indicators and reporting requirements; and 

 The proposal. 
 
In response to a question from the Chair, the Director of Education advised that 
having the service based within an education setting had worked well but that it had 
put a high demand on Lancasterian School’s governing body so new governance 
arrangements were needed; however, she emphasised that there were no plans to 
reduce the budget for the service nor to significantly change the service. In response 
to a further question about feedback from within the Sensory Support Service, the 
Assistant Director of Education advised that the service had submitted a number of 
questions, which had been responded to, and that, if the proposal was approved, 
there would be a formal consultation period.  She drew Members’ attention to the 
timeline set out in the report. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To receive an update report at a future meeting. 
 
2. To endorse the recommendations that the Executive: 
 
(i)     Approves progressing option 3 within a budget envelope of £2.83m per annum.  
 

Page 9

Item 4



(ii)   Delegate authority to the Strategic Director for Children and Education to do all 
things necessary to conduct the procurement exercise and award the contract for the 
service in consultation with the Deputy Chief Executive, City Treasurer. 
 
(iii)    Authorises the City Solicitor to enter all necessary documentation to give effect 
to the recommendations and details set out in the report. 
 
CYP/22/18 COVID-19 Update 
  
The Committee received a verbal update from the Education Business Partner which 
outlined new developments and significant changes to the current situation, 
particularly in relation to schools.   
 
The main points and themes within the verbal update included: 
 

 The number of positive cases in schools, noting that these were reducing; 

 That schools were still being asked to report positive cases to the Manchester 
Test and Trace team and that the team was continuing to support schools;  

 Changes to restrictions including the removal of the requirement for face 
coverings and regular testing; 

 That, while the legal requirement to self-isolate had been removed, 
government guidance still advised self-isolation for those who tested positive 
and self-isolation and testing for those with symptoms; 

 School leaders’ concerns that some parents would want to send children with 
symptoms or who had tested positive to school; and 

 Ongoing communication and support for schools and communication with 
parents, emphasising the importance of keeping children at home in the above 
circumstances. 
 

A Member commented that some children could be badly affected by COVID-19, 
including Long Covid, and that it was important to communicate to parents that 
COVID-19 had not gone away and that people needed to continue to be careful.  The 
Education Business Partner advised that the task group meetings on COVID-19, at a 
Manchester and Greater Manchester level, were continuing and that Long Covid 
would be a focus.  She reported that the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) to 
schools included advice on staff with Long Covid. 
 
The Chair advised that the standing item on COVID-19 should remain on the agenda 
and that vaccinations should be looked at again under this item at a future meeting.  
She highlighted the forthcoming examinations and the impact of the pandemic on 
children and young people’s mental health. 
 
Decision 
 
That this will continue to be a standing item on the agenda and that the vaccination of 
children and young people will be looked at under this item at a future meeting.   
 
 
 
 

Page 10

Item 4



CYP/22/19 Children and Young People Participation and Engagement Plan 
  
The Committee received a report of the Strategic Director of Children and Education 
Services which provided an update on the current plans for children and young 
people’s engagement and participation. This report included updates from targeted 
and universal services, aligned to the ambitions set out in the Our City, Our Say 
Strategy. The report also outlined the plans for a refresh of the participation and 
engagement strategy, in response to the global pandemic, new investment from the 
City Council and national funds and the declaration of the Climate Change 
Emergency. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

 Targeted offer; 

 Universal offer; and 

 Next steps. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

 To recognise the importance of the voices of children and young people being 
heard and to thank all the officers working to ensure that this happened; 

 To congratulate Manchester Youth Council on winning a Youth Focus North 
West award for their commitment to saving the planet;  

 To request an update on the Youth Violence research and strategy; 

 To request an update on work on climate change in relation to young people 
and schools; and 

 Capturing the voices of young people in the Youth Justice System, noting that 
the Committee would be carrying out visits to Wetherby Young Offenders 
Institute and Barton Moss Secure Children’s Home; 

 
A Co-opted Member who was a Teacher at Abraham Moss Community School 
highlighted the role that schools could play in this work, including through School 
Councils and working in partnership with other schools, and stated that she would 
welcome the Council’s involvement in facilitating this.  A Member shared her positive 
experience of meeting pupils from Abraham Moss and their enthusiasm for the 
engagement work that was taking place.  The Head of Youth, Play and Participation 
agreed that more should be done with schools and advised that this was a priority 
area and that he would contact the Co-opted Member outside of the meeting in 
relation to this. 
 
The Executive Member for Children’s Services informed Members that briefings 
would be held for Elected Members in advance of the drafting of the serious violence 
strategy.  The Head of Youth, Play and Participation reported that his service was 
committed to being actively involved in the work on the strategy on youth violence.  
He advised that an update on the work on climate change could be provided at a 
future meeting.  The Director of Education reported that the climate change 
conference planned for June was being co-produced with young people with 
workshops co-delivered by them. 
 

Page 11

Item 4



The Head of Service for Youth Justice advised that his service used a range of 
methods to capture the views, ideas and experiences of young people, including 
topical research and narrative interviewing techniques.  He informed the Committee 
about work with Manchester Metropolitan University researching the criminal justice 
system during lockdown, work which young people were actively involved in.  The 
Strategic Director of Children and Education Services highlighted examples of how 
young people were involved in shaping services and influencing decision-making.  
The Chair advised that visits undertaken by the Committee should focus on the voice 
of children and young people. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
CYP/22/20 Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit, responses to previous 
recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was 
asked to approve. 
 
Decision 

 
To note the report and agree the work programme. 
 
 

Page 12

Item 4



 

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee – Ofsted Subgroup 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2022 
 
Present:  
Councillor Lovecy – in the Chair 
Councillors Foley, Hewitson, Nunney and Reid 
 
CYP/OSG/22/04 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2022. 
 
CYP/OSG/22/05 Local Government Association (LGA) Permanence Peer 
Challenge 
 
The Subgroup received a report of the Deputy Director of Children’s Services which 
provided feedback from the recent LGA Permanence Peer Challenge. 
 
The main points and themes within the report included: 
 

 The process; 

 Key messages from the review; and 

 Recommendations. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Subgroup’s discussions 
were: 
 

 To note the improvements made since 2014 when Manchester’s Children’s 
Services were judged as “inadequate” by Ofsted; 

 The importance of Members continuing to undertake visits across Children’s 
Services;  

 Social Worker caseloads, including the variability of caseloads between Social 
Workers; 

 The number of agency staff; and 

 Whether Our Children and Young People (Looked After Children and Care 
Leavers) received priority for health services, for example dental appointments 
and Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS). 

 
In response to a Member’s comment that the report did not mention the pandemic, 
the Strategic Director of Children and Education Services informed Members that 
one of the peer reviewers had commented positively on staff not talking about the 
pandemic, reflecting that the service had continued to work face-to-face throughout, 
unlike many other local authorities.  He reported that the average caseload for 
experienced Social Workers was about 17.6, with the highest number being 25 and 
Newly Qualified Social Workers having an average caseload of 12 or 13, whereas in 
2015 some Social Workers had 40 to 50 cases.    He advised that there were 36 
agency staff across the Directorate and that this was the lowest level of reliance on 

Page 13

Item 4Appendix 1,



 

agency staff across the region.  In response to a Member’s comments, he provided 
an update on progress in providing staff with suitable IT equipment.  He 
recommended that he and the Chair of the Children and Young People Scrutiny 
Committee have a discussion about future visits to the service, including making the 
visits more focused.  Members discussed the need to ensure the voice of the child 
was heard and the role of Our Year in engaging with children and young people. 
 
A Member suggested that training should be arranged for Councillors in the new 
municipal year covering a range of topics, including the journey that Children’s 
Services had been on since 2014, noting that there would be new Councillors after 
the election.  The Strategic Director of Children and Education Services agreed that a 
session on Children’s Services could be provided to Members in the new municipal 
year, also covering the future plans for the service. In response to the question about 
health services, he informed the Subgroup that Our Children and Young People had 
a designated team of health professionals, that they had a good relationship with 
CAMHS and that additional services could be commissioned where needed.  He 
confirmed that Our Children and Young People were prioritised for access to health 
services, including dentistry.  In response to a further question, he reported that when 
they became Looked After, children received an initial health assessment and a 
Personal Education Plan.   
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
CYP/OSG/22/06 Ofsted Inspections of Manchester Schools 
 
The Subgroup received a list of all Manchester schools which had been inspected 
since the last meeting and the judgements awarded.  The Senior Schools Quality 
Assurance Officer provided an overview of this information. 
 
The Subgroup considered the recent Ofsted report for St Patrick’s RC Primary 
School, which had been judged as “good” at its most recent inspection in November 
2021.  The Senior Schools Quality Assurance Officer reported that the school had 
been placed in special measures in 2009 then judged as “satisfactory” in 2011 and, 
following the change in the Ofsted Framework, judged as “requires improvement” on 
three subsequent inspections so, she advised, this inspection had been critical.  She 
outlined how a formal partnership with St Edmund’s RC Primary School had 
benefited both schools.  She highlighted some of the key points from the Ofsted 
report.  A Member welcomed the positive journey of this school to achieving a “good” 
judgement and suggested that the Subgroup could consider visiting the school.  A 
Member reported that some schools subsequently reverted to “requires 
improvement” at their next inspection and highlighted the need for local authority 
support to ensure that this did not happen.  A Member welcomed that phonics 
teaching was good at the school and that pupils were knowledgeable about climate 
change.  In response to a Member’s comments about the challenges faced by small 
schools, the Senior Schools Quality Assurance Officer informed Members that the 
Diocese of Salford was exploring the option of academising all its schools.  She 
advised that her team were conscious of the need to sustain improvements made 
and that the allocation of their time across different schools was regularly reviewed. 

Page 14

Item 4Appendix 1,



 

 
The Subgroup considered the recent Ofsted report for Eden Boys’ Leadership 
Academy which had been judged as “good”.  The Senior Schools Quality Assurance 
Officer highlighted some of the key areas within the report including that the school 
had been judged as “outstanding” for behaviour and attitudes and personal 
development.  She reported that the school was open to engagement with the local 
authority, for example, communicating messages about vaccination, although not 
with the Quality Assurance Team.  The Subgroup discussed single sex schools within 
the city, noting that there had been community resistance to a proposed move to 
make existing single-sex schools mixed-sex.  In response to comments from the 
Chair, the Senior Schools Quality Assurance Officer reported that the Director of 
Education had a positive working relationship with the Executive Principal, who was 
also the Executive Principal of the neighbouring Eden Girls’ Leadership Academy.  
The Chair suggested that the Subgroup might want to visit Eden Boys’ Leadership 
Academy. 
 
The Subgroup considered the recent Ofsted report for Rolls Crescent Primary 
School, which had been judged as “good”.  The Senior Schools Quality Assurance 
Officer informed Members that it had converted to an academy and that the 
predecessor school had also been judged as “good”.  She advised Members that the 
school worked collaboratively with the other schools in the same multi-academy trust.  
She highlighted the main points from the report.  She advised that the school had 
been engaging with the Council’s quality assurance processes from this academic 
year.  In response to a Member’s question, she outlined the universal offer to 
Manchester schools, which included a link person within the Council’s Quality 
Assurance Team.  She advised that, unless there were circumstances that warranted 
a higher level of support, schools which were judged as good or better were entitled 
to one visit from a quality assurance professional commissioned by the Council per 
year and that the Council received a written report with feedback from that visit.  A 
Member who was the Chair of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 
suggested that the Committee could look at One Education at a future meeting. 
 
The Subgroup considered the letter from Ofsted following the recent special 
measures monitoring inspection of The East Manchester Academy.  The Senior 
Schools Quality Assurance Officer advised that this was the second monitoring 
inspection since the school had been placed in special measures and that this was 
the best outcome they could have received.  She reported that the school was on a 
journey, making improvements, and that, if this work continued at the same pace, the 
school was on track for coming out of special measures.  She reported that the 
school had an Executive Headteacher and interim management board in place and 
that there was very good engagement with the Quality Assurance Team.  She 
outlined some of the improvements that had been made and steps being taken to 
secure further improvements.  In particular, she stated that, at the time the school 
was placed in special measures, there had been serious safeguarding concerns but 
there had been sustained improvements in this area and pupils now said that they 
felt safe and well looked after.  In response to a Member’s question, she reported that 
Ofsted did consider parental views on the school and, if it had been identified as a 
concern, it would have been highlighted in the report.  She reported that she would 
discuss the school’s engagement with parents with her colleague who attended the 
interim management board meetings.  A Member expressed concern that schools in 

Page 15

Item 4Appendix 1,



 

special measures often struggled to recruit and retain staff.  The Senior Schools 
Quality Assurance Officer acknowledged that this was an issue, also noting the 
restriction on recruiting newly qualified teachers, and that recruitment issues could 
result in teachers teaching their second or third subject.  A Member suggested that 
the Subgroup consider visiting the school.  In response to a Member’s question, the 
Senior Schools Quality Assurance Officer stated that she would check whether the 
school had a Local Authority representative on the governing body.  A Member, who 
was also the Chair of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee, advised 
that the Committee should look at school governance at a future meeting.  She also 
stated that she would ask the School Governance Lead about governor vacancies at 
Manchester schools. 
 
The Subgroup considered the recent Ofsted report for Medlock Primary School.  The 
Senior Schools Quality Assurance Officer informed the Subgroup that the school had 
previously been judged as “requires improvement” and had been judged as “requires 
improvement” again at the latest inspection, but with two areas which were 
considered “good”.  She advised that this was one of the highest priority primary 
schools for her team and that the school was engaging well with her team.  She 
outlined the support the school was receiving and highlighted some of the key points 
from the report.  A Member suggested that the Subgroup consider visiting this school.  
In response to a Member’s question about what powers the local authority had in 
relation to schools which were at risk of going into special measures, the Senior 
Schools Quality Assurance Officer advised that her team built a relationship with 
school leaders to a point where they were comfortable with being strategically 
influenced because of the support the Council could provide to them.  She advised 
that there were statutory powers that could be used where necessary, if this 
relationship had broken down, but that this was not needed in relation to this school.  
A Member asked what tools were available to support the school to improve its 
governance, for example, bringing in a national leader on governance to support the 
school.  The Senior Schools Quality Assurance Officer advised that, as Ofsted had 
identified governance as an area for improvement, her team could approach the 
school to encourage them to engage in an external review of governance by the 
national leader as a supportive measure and she stated that she would discuss this 
with the Senior Schools Quality Assurance Officer who supported this school.  
 
Members discussed which schools they would like to visit and provisionally proposed 
to visit Medlock Primary School, The East Manchester Academy and Eden Boys’ 
Leadership Academy, with arrangements to be finalised in the new municipal year. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To write to St Patrick’s RC Primary School, Eden Boys’ Leadership Academy 

and Rolls Crescent Primary School to congratulate them on their recent Ofsted 
reports. 

 
2. To arrange visits to a selection of the schools in the new municipal year. 
 
 
 
 

Page 16

Item 4Appendix 1,



 

CYP/OSG/22/07 Terms of Reference and Work Programme 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the Terms of Reference and Work Programme. 
 
 

Page 17

Item 4Appendix 1,



This page is intentionally left blank



Manchester City Council 
Report for Information 

 
Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee – 25 May 2022 
 
Subject: Manchester Safeguarding Partnership (MSP) Annual Report 

2020/2021 
 
Report of:  Paul Marshall, Chair of the Children Executive Board  
 

 
Summary 
 
The Manchester Safeguarding Partnership (MSP) is a joint partnership of adult 
safeguarding and children’s safeguarding. The published Manchester Multi Agency 
Safeguarding Arrangements documents can be viewed at: 
www.manchestersafeguardingpartnership.co.uk/manchester-multi-agency-
safeguarding-arrangements-mmasa/ 
  
The MSP is required to produce an annual report, which must report what the MSP 
have done as a result of the safeguarding arrangements, and how effective these 
arrangements have been in practice. The link to the 2020/2021 report can be found 
at: MSP Annual Report 2020-21 : Manchester Safeguarding Boards 
(manchestersafeguardingpartnership.co.uk) 
 
The statutory requirements for this are set out in the multi-agency safeguarding 
arrangements for children within the Department for Education Working Together to 
Safeguard Children (2018) and for adults within The Care Act 2014 and Chapter 141 
of the Care & Support Guidance. 
  
The report covering 2020/2021 reflects adult and child safeguarding business and 
provides an overview of decisions and actions taken by the partners. This includes:  
 

 strategic leadership and accountability 

 assurance and scrutiny activity 

 the strategic priorities for 2020/21 and what we have achieved 

 learning from reviews, including how we implemented the recommendations of 
any local and national child safeguarding practice reviews, including any 
resulting improvements 

 What we plan to focus on in 2021/22. 
 

It is also important that we evidence the impact of our improvements for children, 
their families and citizens of Manchester. We are aware that this has been an area 
for development and work is underway to ensure we are better at measuring impact 
for following years annual report. 

 
The annual report aims to illustrate how the MSP continues to develop an integrated 
approach to safeguarding across the life course with equal accountability between 
the three statutory partners (Greater Manchester Police, Manchester City Council 

Page 19

Item 5

http://www.manchestersafeguardingpartnership.co.uk/manchester-multi-agency-safeguarding-arrangements-mmasa/
http://www.manchestersafeguardingpartnership.co.uk/manchester-multi-agency-safeguarding-arrangements-mmasa/
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.manchestersafeguardingpartnership.co.uk%2Fmsp-annual-report-2020-21%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cmarie.corran%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cfa2048c3669a4677aefc08da291b11d3%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637867493477351720%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7xNqt27j7oWftQmQ6bV6KtWgP91E%2FvxgI%2FE%2B5HPYA3Q%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.manchestersafeguardingpartnership.co.uk%2Fmsp-annual-report-2020-21%2F&data=05%7C01%7Cmarie.corran%40manchester.gov.uk%7Cfa2048c3669a4677aefc08da291b11d3%7Cb0ce7d5e81cd47fb94f7276c626b7b09%7C0%7C0%7C637867493477351720%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7xNqt27j7oWftQmQ6bV6KtWgP91E%2FvxgI%2FE%2B5HPYA3Q%3D&reserved=0


and Manchester Health and Care Commissioning) together with our wider agencies 
and in cooperation with children, their families and citizens.  
 
In 2019/2020, we refreshed our strategic aims for safeguarding, revised our 
leadership and accountability structures and introduce more effective contributions 
from local people via restructured safeguarding forums.  
 
Our vision and strategic priorities for 2020/21, further detailed in our strategic plan, 
are summarised in the diagram below.  
 

MSP STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 

Our strategy for results 
Think Whole Family 

Promote Trauma Informed Practice 
Learn from Practice Improvements 

 

PARTNERSHIP PRIORITIES 
(Governance: report quarterly by sponsor 

to Leadership and accountability) 

SPONSORED PRIORITIES 
(Governance: report 6 monthly by sponsor to 

Leadership and accountability) 
 

Neglect Adult and Child 
Mental Health Adult and 

Children 
Complex Safeguarding 

 

Mental Wellbeing (Health and 
Wellbeing Board) 

Transitions (Transitions Board) 
Homelessness (Homelessness 

Strategic Board) 
 

PARTNERSHIP EFFECTIVENESS 
(Governance: report quarterly by sponsor to Leadership and accountability) 

 

We want strong and effective arrangements to improve safeguarding outcomes for adults, 
children and their families through constructive challenge and collaborative solutions. 

 

 
The period of this annual report (2020/21) covers the time when we were still 
experiencing the restrictions from the pandemic. We know this has had an impact for 
children and their families.  
 
The impact of the 2020/21 annual report has been to provide the opportunity for the 
Partnership to reflect. We recognised the desire and ambition to improve the impact 
of the work of MSP and agreed to commission independent expertise to challenge 
and support us. The result of that review has established the key elements that will 
drive greater effectiveness to take MSP to the next level as being: 
 

 Better evidence base and robust outcomes-based QA, including engaging 

citizens; 

 Clarity around some areas of leadership and governance, including blurred 

role of the Independent Chair and their role in scrutiny: 

 Consider the reliance on a few key people. 

Page 20

Item 5



The next steps in evolving the Partnership will support the ambition we have for it to 
be the best we can in safeguarding and improving well-being of the children and 
citizens of Manchester. 
 
Recommendations 
  
The Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the progress of the safeguarding 
partnership arrangements in the City during this period.  Further work will be 
undertaken in 2020-21 to address the issues currently judged as amber in the 
independent scrutiny report and embed the partnership arrangements. 
 

 
Wards Affected: All 
 

 

Our Manchester Strategy outcomes Summary of how this report aligns to the 
OMS 

A thriving and sustainable city: 
supporting a diverse and distinctive 
economy that creates jobs and 
opportunities 

Effective safeguarding arrangements 
contributes to a capable and resilient workforce 
across all economic groups 
 

A highly skilled city: world class and 
home-grown talent sustaining the 
city’s economic success 

MSP safeguarding arrangements contributes to 
a competent and effective workforce 
Effective safeguarding reduces Adverse 
Childhood Experiences so children achieve 
better outcomes and connected to 
Manchester’s economic opportunities. It also 
enables parents to contribute to the economic 
success of the city as their wellbeing is 
enhanced.  

A progressive and equitable city: 
making a positive contribution by 
unlocking the potential of our 
communities 

Children young people and families face 
safeguarding challenges when these are 
addressed in a timely way with effective 
interventions thereby combatting inequalities to 
enable us to thrive as a city  

A liveable and low carbon city: a 
destination of choice to live, visit, work 

N/A 

A connected city: world class 
infrastructure and connectivity to drive 
growth 

N/A 

 
 

Environmental Impact Assessment - the impact of the issues addressed in this report 
on achieving the zero-carbon target for the city 

Nil 
 

Page 21

Item 5



Contact Officers: 
 
Name: Kate Rose   
Position: Strategic lead for safeguarding and practice development 
Telephone: 07971384791 
E-mail: kate.rose@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Name: Marie Corran 
Position: MSP Partnership Manager  
Telephone:07583069434 
E-mail: marie.corran@manchester.gov.uk 
 
Background documents (available for public inspection): 
 
None 
 
 
 
 

Page 22

Item 5



1 
 

 

 

 
Manchester Safeguarding Partnership 

Annual Report 
2020-2021 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Working together to create a place where all children and adults in Manchester are safe, free from abuse and neglect and supported to live 

happy and healthy lives 

P
age 23

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



2 
 

Foreword 

Welcome to our Manchester Safeguarding Partnership annual report for 

the period 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021. This provides information 

about the work and effectiveness of our local safeguarding arrangements 

for adults and children during this period.   
 

We are writing this report in unprecedented times, where the demands of 

a global pandemic have challenged, and continue to challenge us all, both 

personally and professionally. We are proud of the way we have, and 

continue, to meet this challenge head on as a partnership.   
 

We hope this annual report demonstrates where we believe safeguarding 

arrangements have strengthened as a result of our new arrangements 

which were implemented in June 2019, and where we need to make 

further improvement.  
 

Finally we would like to take the opportunity to thank everyone who is an 

intrinsic part of our Safeguarding Partnership and who work tirelessly each 

day with the children and adults in Manchester with commitment, 

dedication, care and passion. Our success is through the strengths of our 

partners, working together to create a place where all children and adults 

in Manchester are safe, free from abuse and neglect and supported to live 

happy and healthy lives  

 
 

Joanne Roney OBE Ian Williamson                             Paul Savill 

Chief Executive  Chief Accountable Officer         Chief Superintendent 

Manchester City Council Manchester Health         Greater Manchester  

   and Care Commission   Police 

Comments from The Independent Chair 
 

The business year 2020-21 has proven to be a challenging one for the 

Manchester Safeguarding Partnership. In particular, the challenge of 

Covid-19 has tested the strength of Partnership bonds in what was only 

the second year of their reformulation. The impact of Covid on the citizens 

of Manchester has been disproportionate due to the levels of poverty and 

inequality that affect the City. The Partnership has responded well to the 

challenge of the pandemic by: 

• Identifying and responding to new levels of safeguarding demand – 

particularly with respect to harm to infants, increases in levels of 

domestic abuse and mental health and well-being needs. 

• Enhancing the arrangements to enable reflection and learning of good 

safeguarding practice on a co-ordinated cross-agency basis 

• Examining current safeguarding processes and asking how they can 

better meet the needs of people – the arena of the safeguarding needs 

of homeless people being a particular point of focus in this. 

• Engaging with people so to ensure that the Partnership identifies and 

responds to their priorities and concerns. 

The pandemic undoubtedly interrupted the plans and strategies that the 

Partnership had made in anticipation of its second year of operation. In 

particular, the ambitions for closer cross-partnership working were 

frequently thwarted by the restrictions on people’s engagement in core 

activities. Nevertheless, the legacy of the pandemic is one which has 

enabled the Partners to re-examine established practice and adapt and 

refine ways of working which better meet the needs of the people of 

Manchester.  

 

Henri Giller 

Independent Chair 

P
age 24

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



3 
 

1 Introduction  

Manchester Safeguarding Partnership (MSP) provides the statutory function for both Children’s and Adult’s multi-agency safeguarding, 

fulfilling statutory duties within: 

• The Care Act 2014 

• The Child and Family Social Work Act 2017 and Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018 (Department for Education). 

 

The MSP was formulated in 2019 to bring together the Children’s and Adult’s Safeguarding Boards and our published arrangements set out 

how we will work together to safeguard the most vulnerable people in Manchester. These require the MSP to publish an annual report on the 

effectiveness of our arrangements and of working together to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and adults in the local area. This 

report therefore aims to provide a rigorous and transparent assessment of the performance and effectiveness for the 2020/21 year. It also 

aims to identify areas for further improvement and any proposals and actions being taken to achieve this. 

 

The first part of the report provides context and details of our governance together with an evaluation about the development and 

implementation of the MSP arrangements, and the work of the partnership and it’s sub-groups during the 2020/21 year. This section includes 

an annual statement from the Independent Chairperson. 

 

The latter part reviews our 2020/21 strategic priorities together with progress and impact we have achieved against these, and our plans for 

2021/22 and beyond.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 25

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,

https://www.manchestersafeguardingpartnership.co.uk/manchester-multi-agency-safeguarding-arrangements-mmasa/


4 
 

2 Context 

Manchester is a Core City with a population of 0.5m, consisting of a higher proportion of young people aged 20-34 than the England average. 

An increasing population, together with issues within the city arising from high homelessness, crime rates, and transience of people into 

Manchester centre, presents challenges for safeguarding partners and the Partnership in terms of demand, need and complexity. A summary 

of our current context is provided in the figures below.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 26

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



5 
 

  

P
age 27

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



6 
 

 

As the COVID-19 pandemic emerged and restrictions were placed upon us, our primary thought was how we keep children and adults safe, and 

this became our core priority. COVID-19 has put a huge strain on our citizens and the workforce, and made previously straightforward 

engagement with our service users more challenging with the additional risks of not always being able to see children and adults. School and 

care service closures from March 2020 and the withdrawal of other services added increased risk for some children and vulnerable adults and 

reduced their visibility to key agencies supporting them at a time when they need it most.  In Manchester our schools worked in partnership to 

remain open for the most vulnerable children, and we know for many of them this had a significant positive impact. 

 

We have been able to rise to the challenge as a partnership through meeting regularly to plan, implement and review our response together to 

the pandemic and services provided; maintaining close collaborative working on an individual and strategic level; moving from face to face to 

virtual training to maintain professional development; and maintained timely and appropriate arrangements for children’s case reviews and 

quality assurance activities to ensure that learning feeds into improvement in the year’s ever changing context. Partners have worked 

tenaciously together to adapt quickly to new ways of working and maintained a rigorous focus on safeguarding our citizens. 

 

We are clear that COVID-19 is still here, and it will continue to impact on 

delivery and presenting needs. Through continued risk management; co-

ordination and working creatively together, we continue to adapt and change 

to keep children and adults safe from harm.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 28

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



7 
 

3 Partnership arrangements  

3.1 Manchester Safeguarding Partnership networks 

The MSP sits within wider Manchester and Greater Manchester networks, who work closely together on cross-cutting and cross-boundary 

areas to ensure there is a seamless approach to safeguarding and sharing of best practice.  

 

The four main partnership in Manchester are: 

• Manchester Safeguarding Partnership (MSP) 

• Community Safety Partnership (CSP) 

• Children’s Partnership  

• Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB) 

  

These are supported by an Inter-Board Protocol, refreshed early 2021, which sets out lead responsibilities for each partnership and how they 

will work together. The CSP leads on domestic violence for the Manchester, with collaboration in the year on implementation of a new 

domestic abuse strategy and developments such as commissioning of therapeutic intervention services for children who are victims of 

domestic abuse and a Child to Parent Violence and Abuse intervention programme in response to recognised gaps in service. The CSP also 

leads on serious violence and will prioritise the development of a Partnership strategy based on a public health approach and rooted in a 

trauma informed solution to reducing the harm this causes for individuals, families and communities. This is significant for MSP with the 

emerging profile for reviews of child deaths and the lessons from the national review. 

 

The MSP works collaboratively with other boards in Manchester, such as the Homelessness Board. 

 

Manchester City is one of the ten local areas that form the Greater Manchester (GM) Safeguarding 

Alliance. In the year, we have worked together on collaborative projects to help partners share best 

practice and work better together to provide a more consistent service to safeguard children. 

 

 

 

P
age 29

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



8 
 

3.2 Core Partners 

Whilst the MSP is constituted of a variety of organisations and services who all have a key role to play in keeping our children and citizens safe 

including the voluntary sector (see below1), there is a much wider array of organisations, services and people that we work and communicate 

with. This includes those listed in Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018 as relevant agencies. 
 

THREE STATUTORY PARTNERS 

 Greater Manchester Police 

(GMP) 

 Manchester City Council 

(MCC) 

 Manchester Health and 

Care Commission (MHCC) 

ORGANISATIONS AND SERVICES WHICH FORM PART OF THE PARTNERSHIP 

 Adult Services, Manchester City Council 

 CAFCASS 

 Career Connect 

 Children's Social Care, Manchester City Council 

 Community Safety Partnership (CSP) 

 Early Help Service, Manchester city Council 

 Early Years Service, Manchester City Council 

 Education Department, Manchester City Council 

 Education settings such as schools and colleges 

 Greater Manchester Child Mental Health  

 Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service 

 Greater Manchester NHS Mental Health Trust (GMMH) 

 HM Prison Service 

 Independent Person (Chair Adult Executive and Children’s Executive) 

 Manchester Health Watch 

 Manchester Targeted Youth Support Service 

 Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust (MFT) 

 National Probation Service 

 North-West Ambulance Service (NWAS) 

 Strategic Housing including Homelessness 

 Youth Justice Service 

CHILDREN AND CITIZENS   

 People of all ages who 

live, work and enjoy 

Manchester 

 
1 Acronyms for some agencies provided in this table have been used throughout the report. 

P
age 30

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/942454/Working_together_to_safeguard_children_inter_agency_guidance.pdf


9 
 

3.3 Current arrangements 

Our current joint partnership arrangements were published in June 2019, with an update in December 2019.  They set out how the statutory 

arrangements for a children’s multi-agency safeguarding arrangements (MASA) and adult safeguarding board arrangements have been 

brought together under a single Manchester Safeguarding Partnership.  

 

The structure (see diagram) has been in 

operation since that time. It includes a 

joint Accountabilities and Leadership 

Board, comprising of our strategic 

statutory partners and Independent 

Chairperson, and separate Child and 

Adult Safeguarding Executive Groups 

meeting quarterly to ensure at a 

leadership level we are able to also 

maintain a committed focus jointly and 

individually on Adult and Child 

safeguarding. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 31

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,

file:///C:/Users/carol/Dropbox/C048%20-%20Manchester%20SP/Manchester%20Multi%20Agency%20Safeguarding%20Arrangements%20(MMASA)
file:///C:/Users/carol/Dropbox/C048%20-%20Manchester%20SP/Final%20Updated%20MMASA%20Document%20,agreed%20in%20December%202019


10 
 

From 1st April 2020, near the commencement of the COVID-19 pandemic, each group had continued to meet virtually in the year: 
 

Accountability & Leadership  

4/4 

Quality Assurance 

9/11 

Learning and Improvement 

4/4 

Adult’s Executive 

4/4 

Children’s Executive 

5/5 

Adult’s Practice Review 

4/4 

Children’s Practice Review 

5/5 

Child Death Overview Panel 

11/11 

Locality Practice Fora 

7/10 

Complex Safeguarding 

9/9 

 

 

 

3.4 Annual Reports from Sub-Groups 

A short summary of each sub-group with examples of work undertaken in 2020/21 is provided below. Achievements for case reviews and 

quality assurance activities are provided separately in those relevant sections. 

 

Adult Practice Review  

The Adult Safeguarding Practice Review Panel (sub-group) undertake the review of Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) referrals and decide 

whether a formal review or other learning activity is required. They also undertake or receive other reviews, ensuring that lessons are learned, 

and practice is developed in the multi-agency partnership.  

 

In 2020/21, the Panel: 

 Published the Homelessness Thematic Report authored by Professor Michael Preston Shoot and the action plan, jointly owned by MSP 

and Homelessness Strategic Group.  

 Published a range of Safeguarding Adult Reviews and other reviews (see Case Review section below for more detail).  

 Drove forward key areas for Adult Executive Board (AEB) scrutiny: developing commissioning provision for people with complex needs; 

Chair’s report into death by suicide and agreement to undertake Joint Review with Trafford in 2021. 

P
age 32

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



11 
 

Child Practice Review  

The Partnership’s process for child practice reviews makes recommendations to the safeguarding partners, initiating practice or learning 

reviews, and oversee the commissioning and quality of local child safeguarding practice/learning reviews. The sub-group also progresses the 

decisions, recommendations and notifications to the National Panel and act upon decisions on whether to carry out a local child-safeguarding 

practice review, complying with requirements of Working Together to Safeguard Children guidance as well as best practice.  

 

In 2020/21, the Panel: 

 Progressed all the outstanding Safeguarding Children Review (SCR) legacy reports in line with the requirements of Working 

Together 2018. 

 Commissioned a Thematic Learning Review on serious youth violence with Trafford Safeguarding Board to report in 2022.  

 Worked creatively over the Covid-19 lockdown maintaining regular meeting via teams and for development work on rapid reviews 

started in November 2020. 

 Started to reflect the quality of the information within referrals from Partners into rapid review to improve the decision making 

process for children and their families. 

 

 

Complex Safeguarding  

The Complex Safeguarding sub-group is jointly led by MCC Social Care and GMP, with close links to the CSP. Their purpose is to co-ordinate and 

address the complexities within key aspects of safeguarding such as sexual and criminal exploitation, Female Genital Mutilation, trafficking and 

honor based violence.  Complex Safeguarding was an MSP priority for 2020/21, and information about activities and impact in this area is 

provided later in the report. 

 

In 2020/21, the sub-group: 

 Strengthened exploration of identity and family dynamics within assessments and review of the requirements of the National 

Referral Mechanism. 

P
age 33

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



12 
 

 CSP commissioned Hope for Justice to deliver 15 sessions targeting front line staff including Homeless Services. This is reflected in 

increased intelligence and crimes reported in 2020. 

 Focused on emerging policy and practice including contextual safeguarding, with a pilot underway in the East of the City, 

understanding the links between vulnerability, serious youth violence and overrepresentation of minority ethnic groups and re-

energising the partnership work in relation to transitional safeguarding. 

 

 

Learning and Improvement  

The Learning and Improvement sub-group takes the learning from quality assurance activity, the Safeguarding Practice Review Panels and 

other sources to determine the plans and arrangements for effective action to deliver learning and improvement. This may be events / 

courses, policies, processes and procedures or dissemination of practice issues. The sub-group also oversee the adult and children Locality 

Practice Forums to ensure new strategies and learning are shared with a wide range of managers and practitioners across Manchester, and  

strengthen links between the partnership and practice. 

 

In 2020/21, the sub-group: 

 Audited current training provision during lockdown across the partnership. 

 Discussed findings, identified and implemented learning and dissemination from seven case reviews and other themed reviews. 

 Continued to develop and deliver a range of training and engagement activities during the Covid period (see Workforce 

Development Section). 

 

 

Quality Assurance  

The Quality Assurance (QA) sub-group is responsible for evaluating the effectiveness of Manchester Safeguarding Partnership by providing 

strategic leaders with a clear line of sight to understand the ways in which children and adults at risk of, or experiencing harm are being 

effectively protected. This includes identifying, commissioning or undertaking a range of audits and other QA activity in addition to regular 

quarterly performance reports. 

P
age 34

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



13 
 

In 2020/21, the sub-group: 

 Developed and commissioned a web-based platform that will enable partner to access in real time action plans, data performance 

information, audits etc resulting in more efficient use of time and resources.  

 Developed a digital workforce survey tool to complement the s11 and adult assurance statement encompassing frontline 

practitioner report.   

 Despite Covid 19 lockdown, subgroup and partner agencies completed Section 11 and adult assurance statement.  

 

 

Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP) 

Duties of the CDOP are laid out in statutory guidance and in our published arrangements. The CDOP produces an annual report to the 

Accountabilities and Leadership Board that includes review of child deaths; effectiveness of arrangements; lessons learnt and actions taken; and 

effectiveness of the wider child death review process. There were 52 child death notifications reported to the Manchester CDOP and 29 cases 

reviewed between 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 compared to 61 the previous year. 

 

In 2020/21, CDOP: 

 Implemented the Greater Manchester eCDOP system, which went live on 1 April 2021, to support the statutory requirement for 

professionals to notify the Manchester CDOP of all child deaths aged 0-17 years of age within 24 hours (or the next working day) of 

the death. 

 Established a direct link between the Greater Manchester eCDOP system and the National Child Mortality Database, to 

automatically transfer live child death data which assists national initiatives such as COVID-19 related studies to review the impact 

of the pandemic. 

 Featured as an exemplar case study in the Thematic Report for the Manchester Reducing Infant Mortality Strategy, detailing how 

the Manchester CDOP recommendations and local learning, focused on reducing modifiable factors around social deprivation. 

  
 

P
age 35

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,

https://www.ncmd.info/publications/child-mortality-social-deprivation
https://www.manchester.gov.uk/downloads/download/7002/reducing_infant_mortality_strategy


14 
 

Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) 

Whilst not an MSP sub-group, the oversight of the management of allegations against adults who work with children in Manchester is a key 

statutory function for consideration by the partnership, including scrutiny of an annual LADO report. There were 326 allegation enquiries in 

2020/21, compared to 351 the previous year. 171 of these were converted to allegation referrals. 47% were substantiated; 38% 

unsubstantiated or unfounded; and 15% with ongoing Police investigation / ongoing employment investigation.  We know from that 

professionals find the advice and guidance provided at enquiry stage is service extremely beneficial, and a significant proportion (65%) of all 

contacts are dealt with as enquiries only.  

 

In 2020/21: 

 There has been an increased attendance from all key partner agencies alongside increased participation from other agencies that 

would have previously not attended. 

 The service has developed a training package, which has been delivered in the year and plans to continue delivery in 2021/22. 

 Partner feedback was sought following LADO Meetings about how satisfied they were of the meeting. Of 41 partners responding, 

the general feedback was extremely positive with an average score overall of 4.8 out of 5. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 36

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



15 
 

3.5 How did we do? 

 

PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS 

Achievements What we can do better 
 Representatives of statutory partners and other relevant organisations 

met regularly to assess the impact of Covid on safeguarding and shared 
intelligence across key partners, identification of risks caused by Covid 
and strategies to ameliorate them.  Where possible, ‘business as usual’ 
was sustained. Where not possible, strategies to prioritise vulnerable 
groups were put in place. 

 Risk register reviewed by the Independent Chair quarterly to identify 
safeguarding risks faced by the partnership and mitigation. 

 Refreshed Partnership business plan implemented in April 2020. 
Business priorities identified in the plan progressed on all fronts  and 
partners ensured priorities were communicated to key stakeholders 
providing a sound foundation in a period of challenge. 

 MSP Quality Assurance Sub-group established and working group set up 
to plan workforce survey. 

 Learning and Improvement sub-group promoted sharing good practice 
and learning from reviews to inform agencies frontline practice.  

 We continued to embed person centered approaches through the 
develop of the adult fora meetings.  

 MSP subgroups provided assurance quarterly and highlighted successes 
and challenges demonstrating that citizens were safeguarded. 

 Further work needed to ensure safeguarding priorities are specific and 
jointly owned where this is not already the case.  

 Re-focus on multi-agency audits to assure the partnership that agencies 
work well together for the benefit of our children and citizens. 

 Promote the voice of frontline practitioner and mangers in the work of 
the partnership, building on the Fora meetings to improve engagement.  

 

 

 

P
age 37

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



16 
 

4 Communications and engagement  

The MSP aims to keep listening and learning from what our children, citizens and professionals tell us, and to work in collaboration with them.  

The Partnership has continued to ensure service users and their voices remain at the heart of decision making and the partnership’s agenda, 

whether that is ensuring their experiences are conveyed in practice reviews, policy development, or through information sharing. Whilst there 

has been a range of activity during the 2020/21 year, Covid-19 presented challenges in progressing plans in place to increase communication 

and engagement, other ways to engage such as through services and virtually were utilized. Communication and Engagement is a key area we 

plan to improve.  

 

4.1 Engagement with children and citizens 

The Partnership considered and acted on a range of different voices, as well as routine feedback from service users, including: 

 

 Young people have participated in themed conversations focused on Stop & Search, Black Lives Matter, and Living through Covid.  

 A Manchester Carers survey in 2020 resulted in an additional 1,082 unwaged carers identified and added to the GP practices 

registration lists.  There are now a total of 10,740 unwaged carers registered on GP practice lists in Manchester. Other 

recommendations from the survey have been implemented. 

 Independent evaluation of The Identification and Referral to Improve Safety (IRIS) 

service delivered with primary care and by Manchester Women’s Aid was positive. 

 The MFT Patient Experience team lead on the ‘What Matters to me’ programme 

across the Hospitals/Managed Clinical Services/Manchester Local Care Organisation 

of the Trust. One key discussion was what ‘safe’ means to the young people and their 

views on safeguarding information sharing. 

 

 

‘So, IRIS were absolutely fantastic. They were 
more sort of specialising in domestic violence 

and more from a medical point of view, 
because they deal with doctors’ surgeries 
with health professionals rather than an 

overview, like an all rounded.’ 

P
age 38

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



17 
 

4.2 Engagement with professionals 

Children’s locality fora continued to meet and were well attended, and adult locality Fora meetings gathered pace in late 2020 following the 

initial lockdown in March 2020. These conversations invigorated practice development, for example through resource sharing, and discussion 

from professional curiosity.   

 Adult Locality Fora identified a need for training on Mental Capacity Act; training on risk assessment and personal safety and 

disengagement from difficult situations; self-neglect and hoarding. These have been progressed by the partnership. 

 Children’s Fora meeting in July 2020 explored how Covid-19 had impacted on practice, including increase in Child Criminal 

Exploitation (CCE) and recent police operation into Child Sexual Exploration (CSE). Change in practice resulted in the South locality 

who are developing panels around CCE and CSE, which are being led by Complex Safeguarding Hub. 

 Safer Together Model: Domestic Abuse Child Concerns (DACC) practitioner discussions in the partnership and explored what is 

working well, how the Sign of Safety model fit in well with cases mapping and comprehensive assessment. 

 Linking professionals: Examples include March 2021 wider 

engagement on street homeless rough sleepers shared with 

colleagues with a request to engage with the project; Obesity 

Health Weight Team Pathways Healthy Weight Team working 

with Children Social Care  to support cases of concern. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 39

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



18 
 

4.3 Communications 

The partnership continued a range of communication activity throughout the year, including a partnership newsletter, with others 

communications through the website; twitter account; and specific communications through media packages, prepared for all adult and 

children reviews. 7 minute briefings were produced and shared on the following topics:  
 

Mental Capacity Act Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 

Interface between MCA & Mental Health Act (MHA) Best Interest Decision Tree 

Difference between Advance Decisions & Advance Statements PREVENT 

MARAC  

 

During 2020, there were just under 500 hits on the MSP website each week with over 150,000 sessions recorded. A business case to upgrade 

the website based on feedback was agreed with work to commence in 2021/22.  

 

 

4.4 Vulnerable children and adults and specific circumstances 

The Care Act says that adult safeguarding is about protecting individuals. We agree. The partnership recognises that there are children and 

adults in Manchester who are living in specific circumstances, who have specific needs, or where there are other conditions that make them 

some of the most vulnerable people in our society and therefore more at risk of not being safe and well.   Additionally, Manchester has an 

ethnically diverse population with high levels of poverty. We are committed to working together to make sure that safeguarding of everyone is 

everyone’s business, undertaking activity and seeking assurance to that effect.  Our role in supporting how schools and services came together 

during the Covid-19 pandemic, especially during lockdown and closures, helped to ensure that the impact was minimized for some of our most 

vulnerable children and service users.   

 

 

 

 

P
age 40

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



19 
 

4.5 How did we do? 

COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT 
Achievements What we can do better 

 Communication and engagement developments paused during the 
first phase of the Covid-19 pandemic, however families feedback for 
learning was prioritized.  

 Adult locality panels/forums set up and continued to operate in the 
period providing a strong multi-agency professionals network. 

 

 Develop a more comprehensive communications strategy which 
includes co-production. 

 Greater use of technology, including website improvements. 

 Complete the delayed workforce survey. 

 Improve feedback from users, carers and staff groups on the 
implications of changing safeguarding practices. 

 

 

 

5 Quality Assurance and Scrutiny 

5.1 Quality Assurance and Performance 

Multi-agency quality assurance and performance improvement activities are key functions of the Partnership and allow us to monitor and 

evaluate the effectiveness of what is done by our partners individually and collectively to safeguard and promote welfare; and for us to advise 

on ways to improve. The Quality Assurance sub-group was created and our quality assurance framework was refreshed early 2021. Activities in 

the year include: 
 

 Asking partners to self-evaluate and assessing the effectiveness and impact of services  

 Quality assuring practice, for example through audits of case files involving practitioners and identifying lessons to be learned 

 Providing scrutiny and challenge based on a range of evidence, including whether partners are fulfilling their statutory obligations. 

  

The information collected through these activities helps to inform the strategic priorities and plans for the Partnership. There are strong links 

across other subgroups to ensure learning, development and communication issues identified are addressed effectively. 

 

P
age 41

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



20 
 

5.2 Independent Chair  

The Independent Chair has been in post since November 2019, to offer independent scrutiny and challenge to the partnership as well as 

contributing their expertise, advice and guidance to the partnership. They have: 

 Attended the Accountabilities and Leadership Board to account for how they have offered independent scrutiny and challenge to the 

partnership arrangements and the impact / difference this has made.  

 Provided independent review and recommendations on partnership business such as the risk register, progress on priorities, and other 

matters. 

 Liaising with other partnerships and partners to promote the MSP and facilitate joint working. 

 Produced an annual assurance statement to Accountabilities and Leadership board as part of the annual report, scrutinising the 

safeguarding arrangements in Manchester. 

 Chaired the Child and Adult Safeguarding Executive Groups to understand and drive the partnership arrangements forward and to 

scrutinise the impact that the revised arrangements have made for children and adults at risk of, or experiencing, harm. 

 

5.3 How did we do? 

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND SCRUTINY 
Achievements What we can do better 

 Independent Chairperson provided quarterly assurance on safeguarding 
effectiveness and resilience of partnership working.  

 Created a QA sub-group to provide a greater multi-agency focus and 
scrutiny on how we are doing. 

 Pace of implementation and change interrupted by the Covid pandemic 

 Develop a more multi-agency dataset and evidence base. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 42

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



21 
 

6 Case Reviews and learning  

Arrangements for both adult and child case reviews and threshold criteria are prescribed in legislation and guidance. There is, however,  

flexibility of approach to learning reviews below the respective thresholds as understanding of practice is also gained below the threshold for a 

statutory review through multi-agency audits and themed audits. The MSP has undertaken a number of these reviews during the year.  There 

is no nationally available benchmark data about the ‘right’ number of statutory reviews to undertake and the number of referrals and reviews 

varies greatly between local areas.  

 

6.1 ADULTS SAFEGUARDING CASE REVIEW  

 18 SAR referrals were received. Referrals came from GMP (7); Adult Social Care (4); Manchester Foundation Trust (2); GMMH (2); 

MHCC (1) and other local authorities (2).  

 SAR AD - Published June 2020. Themes: self-neglect, MCA, advocacy and the importance of multi-agency meetings.  7 minute briefing 

published and learning pack circulated across Adult Foras 

 Homeless Thematic Review - Published Aug 2020. Themes: Multi exclusion homelessness, substance misuse, self-neglect and mental 

health concerns.  Powerpoint shared across Adult Fora highlighting themes and recommendations, extensive action plan ongoing to 

improve access to services for those experiencing homelessness in our City. 

 SAR Olia - Published Jan 2021. Themes cultural competence, Think Family, effective pre-birth processes and working with adults who 

have had children removed. 7 minute briefing regarding Think Family shared across Partnership for attention of both adults and 

children along with Learning report. 

 SAR Johnny - Published Feb 2021 -  Themes of dealing with distressed behaviour, cross border communication, care home issues and 

multi-agency discussion 

 7MB around distressed behaviour shared across partnership and with Care Home Improvement Group / plus 7MB and ppt regarding 

review findings. 

 

P
age 43

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



22 
 

6.2 CHILDREN’S SAFEGUARDING CASE REVIEW 

 12 referrals were received during 2020/21, 50% of which were as a result of a child death and 50% as a result of injury/possible 

significant harm. Referrals came from GMP (67%); Manchester Foundation Trust (17%); MHCC (8%) and Pennine Care (8%).  

 U1- published April 2020. Child sadly died from traumatic injuries caused by an extended family member. MFT to implement their 

action plan and the actions are embedded into practice, the need for professional curiosity and challenge; non-accidental injury should 

be considered when bruising is present; at the point of referral or concern about a child’s welfare it should be established whether 

there are any other children cared for by the adults involved and appropriate risk assessments taken. 7 minute briefing published, 

disseminated via Fora and incorporated into locality learning from reviews event. Action plan produced.  

 Q1 - published May 2020. Interfamilial sexual abuse and delay in recognising signs of abuse, understanding of safeguarding thresholds 

across agencies; raise awareness of child sexual abuse across the partnership; MSP is assured that there is effective record keeping by 

agencies to inform shared multi-agency safeguarding decision making and processes; progressing safeguarding concerns during school 

holidays; ensuring access to information about safeguarding concerns during school holidays; contact DfE Education Skills and Funding 

Agency and Regional Schools Commissioner to raise the concerns highlighted in relation to lack of information regarding HR records. 

Learning Report completed and action plan produced.  

 W1 - published September 2020. Non-accidental injuries to 4 month old baby.  Strengthen approach to chronologies to ensure they are 

impact focused; planning and interventions are informed by a conceptual model of change; a trauma informed approach to planning 

and interventions is embedded into practice; Motivational Interviewing incorporating a “Signs of Safety” approach is embedded in 

thinking and practice; ICON approach is embedded across the partnership; the role of the IDVA is promoted in all responses to 

domestic abuse. 7 minute briefing published and learning video available on youtube. Learning shared at L&I sub-group and 

incorporated into locality learning from reviews. Action Plan produced.  

 Education: The Covid Safeguarding Audit (replaced S175 audit for 2019-20) was released in September 2020 to gain assurance that 

safeguarding for the children and young people of Manchester during the pandemic (first phase) had been comprehensive, rigorous 

and appropriate. It was completed by 93% of all settings, including independent schools and  post-16 sector, all of whom provided 

assurance of how they were continuing to work with agility in response to school closures. 

P
age 44

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



23 
 

6.3 How did we do? 

 

 

 

 

7 Workforce Development 

7.1 Our offer and takeup 

The MSP provides a free learning programme to anyone who works with a Manchester child, family or adult. The impact of COVID-19 resulted 

in the MSP adapting the face to face training programme, and a reduced virtual training offer was provided. In January 2021, online learning 

moved to a new platform `Enable` which provided an opportunity to capture agency usage, make available free Virtual College courses and 

approve courses to reduce non-completion and non-Manchester usage.  The online learning offer, delivered by a range of professionals as well 

as external organisations or speakers such as The Proud Trust delivering LGBT and Awareness, was expanded and usage significantly increased 

during 2020/21 to the extent that due to the increased demand the MSP purchased an additional 3,000 licences.  

 

Evaluation and impact of learning is captured through online learner feedback, which remain high at approximately 70% response rate; and 

impact evaluation survey 3 months post course.  The tables below provide a summary of usage by agency and courses. 

 

 

CASE REVIEWS AND LEARNING 
Achievements What we can do better 

 Thematic review of the safeguarding needs of homeless people in the 
City completed. Good inter-partnership working with the 
Homelessness Board on this themed review. 

 A number of SARs, rapid reviews and other themed reviews were 
undertaken, the learning of which has informed future practice. 
 

 Consistency in quality of independent review reports 
 Multi-agency audits restricted to regulatory requirements   
 Ensure timeliness of practice review improves to promote learning and 

practice improvements  
 The methodology for ensuring rapid reviews extract learning at the 

earliest opportunity. 

P
age 45

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



24 
 

 

 

Number of courses 

  

2020/21 

 

 

2019/20 

Number of Online Courses 

accessed 

8028 5747 

Number of online courses non-

completed 

888 196 

Completion rate 89% 97% 

 

 

Summary of Agency Usage 2020/21  

Agency No. course 

modules 

accessed 

 

% 

Education/Nursery/College 5054 63% 

Voluntary Sector 1274 16% 

Private 461 6% 

Manchester Housing Providers 406 5% 

MCC 364 4.5% 

GMP 79 1% 

NHS (MFT=22, GMMH=18,GP 

services=14) 

62 <1% 

Other  328 4% 

 

 

Most popular Children and Adult Online Course Modules 

 

Online Safeguarding Module  No. course 

modules 

accessed 

Level 1 Safeguarding Children/Refresher 2253 

Awareness of Domestic Violence and Abuse 524 

Level 1 Safeguarding Everyone 508 

FGM (Abuse Linked to Faith or Belief) 460 

Gang Related issues and County Lines  399 

Radicalisation and Extremism 381 

Protecting children from Child Sexual Exploitation 320 

LGBTQ Awareness (new course) 260 

Level 1 Safeguarding Adults/Refresher 240 

Self-Neglect 224 

Mental Health and Wellbeing Resource Pack (new 

free course from January 21) 

63 

 

P
age 46

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



25 
 

7.2 How did we do? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 
Achievements What we can do better 

 Successful move to virtual platforms: Virtual training offer provided by 

partners and increased usage of online learning and virtual locality-

based Learning Events `Learning from Reviews`.  Virtual Learning Circle 

for Child SF - report and 7 Minute Briefing produced. 

 Development and support of Adult and Children Fora. 

 Increased use of social media including You Tube recording to share 

learning. 

 Safeguarding Adults week – social media campaign. 

 Managing High Risk Together pathway launched- mini-training video, 

when to use MHRT video produced, and screened at Fora and ASC 

working group.  7-min briefing produced. 

 Finalised ‘Introduction to Adult Safeguarding’ course.  MSP first live 

training via teams will be tested with this new course.   

 Audit of current training provision during lockdown across partnership. 

 

 Develop a Digital Strategy to further increase and improve user access. 

 Ensure training plan is responsive to strategic priorities for 2021-22. 

whilst realistic in Covid recovery period (i.e. cannot return to full face 

to face sessions). 

 Establish adult multi-agency training pool and explore adult 

training offer. 

P
age 47

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



26 
 

8 Scrutinising MSP arrangements 2020/21 – Independent Chairs assurance statement 

The safeguarding partnership arrangements in Manchester introduced in 2019 included a requirement that they become subject to an annual cycle of 
independent scrutiny and challenge. This measure was intended to both meet the requirements introduced into children’s safeguarding by the Children 
and Social Work Act 2017 and Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018, and to ensure that there was independent assurance of the effectiveness 
of the arrangements for adult safeguarding under the Care Act 2014. This section of the report provides the scrutiny of the Independent Chair of the 
Manchester Partnership of the second working year of the new partnership arrangements. As with last year’s scrutiny report the criteria for scrutiny is 
that proposed by Sir Alan Wood in his report proposing new safeguarding arrangements (para. 69 Wood report: review of the role and functions of local 
safeguarding children boards (2016)). These criteria are said to reflect the key strategic issues that need to authorise and underpin effective multi-
agency practice. Their relevance to effective partnership working is not confined to any specific vulnerable age group. 

Determining the physical area of operation covered by the multi-agency arrangements 

This issue remained unaltered during the period under review. The issue may need to be revisited during 2022 with the reconfiguration of the NHS into 
integrated care systems. In particular, the remit and reach of services that will serve the Greater Manchester area may require the Partnership to 
establish new working arrangements with any newly configured commissioning authority. 

Judgement: Green 

The authorising vision for multi-agency arrangements, the partnership commitment 

The multi-agency vision statement and public commitment to the revised partnership arrangements recognised at the outset of implementation of the 
Partnership remained current during this period reviewed. The statements were included in each of the Partners’ business plans and associated 
documentation. The Partners recognised that there will be a need to review and revisit the vision statements in due course. The business development 
workshop planned for autumn 2020 will examine the extent to which the statutory partners and relevant agencies have delivered on these statements 
of vision and commitment and whether any revision to the statements will be required in 2022 and the period going forward. 

Judgement: Green 

The resource framework, e.g., the cost of the multi-agency strategic decision- making body, the cost of agreed initiatives, e.g., joint training, agreed 
local research, innovation in service design 

The Covid pandemic effectively constrained consideration of reframing the resource framework of the Partnership during this period. Service 
improvements that were taken on by the new Partnership at its inception continued to be progressed. These included improvements to information and 
advice services, the team around the school resources, improved all age early help services and a strengthening of the children’s social care workforce. 
The refreshed Partnership business plan, implemented from April 2020 onwards, prioritised the expansion of the multi-agency complex safeguarding 
hub, a re-structuring of the partnership’s approach to adverse childhood experiences, the development of a neglect strategy and a thematic review of 

P
age 48

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



27 
 

the safeguarding needs of those experiencing homelessness. The Leadership and Accountability Board also agreed to the funding of a digital strategy to 
underpin the Partnership understanding of its impact and effectiveness on the safeguarding needs of Manchester residents. Despite these positives, we 
cannot yet claim that there is a strategic and robust resourcing framework in place across the Partnership.  

Judgement: Amber 

The method to assess outcomes of multi-agency practice, including how intervention happens if performance falters, and how “independent” 
external assurance/scrutiny will be utilised. 

The Covid pandemic has had a significant impact in impinging upon the work programme of both the Quality Assurance Subgroup and the Learning and 
Improvement Subgroup and, in turn, on the evaluation of the effectiveness of practice. The demands of the pandemic on staff time and its impact on the 
prioritisation of agencies business capacity meant consistent membership of these sub-groups suffered. As was reported at the end of the 2019-20 
period, the main focus of activity has been primarily on agency-specific safeguarding performance rather than multi-agency practice. Priority points of 
focus related to domestic abuse, complex safeguarding, mental health, neglect and self-neglect. 

Throughout the period of the Covid pandemic the statutory partners and the independent chair have been meeting regularly (initially fortnightly, latterly 
monthly) to monitor the impact of the pandemic on safeguarding demand and the partners’ response to it. This has provided a significant opportunity 
for partners to share intelligence and perspectives on the impact of the pandemic, develop and inform the risk register to document the safeguarding 
risks created by the pandemic and the actions taken to mitigate them and evaluate the effectiveness of modified working practices and how these can 
be built into new normal ways of working.  

The GM safeguarding alliance did not become operational in the period under review. Manchester will engage with the alliance’s proposed programme 
of shared learning when it commences in the autumn of 2021. 

External review of the Partnership arrangements continues to be led by the Independent Chair. This exercise in the evaluation of the Wood strategic 
criteria is a further iteration of that function. 

Judgement: Amber 

The strategy for information and data sharing, including to allow for identification of vulnerable children in need of early help. 

A protocol for information sharing between the statutory partners and between the partnership and key stakeholder organisations was operationalised 
during this period. This has proven to be robust and effective and has enabled information to be shared both in the arenas of safeguarding need and for 
the purposes of early help.  Guidance on retention and destruction of personal information held by safeguarding stakeholders continues to be under 
development and further work is on-going with respect to the implementation of GDPR. 

P
age 49

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



28 
 

The backlog of legacy serious case reviews involving both children and adults has undoubtedly put information sharing under pressure, particularly when 
the originator of the information may have departed the provider organisation. It remains to be seen how well the revised protocol and procedures 
meet the revised environment for case reviews. 

Judgement: Amber 

High level oversight of workforce planning, e.g. gaps in skilled areas. 

Active strategies to enhance the quality and quantity of the workforce were significantly interrupted by the Covid pandemic, with the primary emphasis 
being on supporting the workforce, thereby enabling staff to continue to provide support and services for those with significant safeguarding risk. The 
demands created by Covid undoubtedly affected the capacity of the workforce to engage with the strategic agenda of the Partnership, their priority 
understandably being to discharge the operational imperative of safeguarding.  

A full programme of virtual on-line training was provided throughout the period, with significantly increased capacity commissioned from the Virtual 
College. In excess of 5,000 individual on-line learning courses were registered in the period. 

Further work was undertaken in the period on the potential for cross-agency and multi-agency workforce planning in the arenas of complex safeguarding, 
the reach of the ACES programme and the work undertaken to raise awareness of mental health issues for both children and adults in a wide variety of 
settings. Further opportunities for an integrated all-age offer are emerging from the neglect strategy and the homelessness thematic review.  

The aspiration of the Learning and Improvement Subgroup to better assess the training needs of the workforce via a safeguarding workforce survey was 
thwarted by the Covid pandemic in this period. The sub-group continues to be committed to the survey as a platform upon which to produce a strategic 
plan for further developing a knowledgeable workforce, confident in its ability to deliver safeguarding services to all ages of potentially vulnerable people 
in the City. This survey will be rolled out in early 2022. 

Judgement: Amber 

A multi-agency communication strategy on protecting children 

The partnership in this period had continued to scope the priority issues of communication that needed to be addressed and the remit and composition 
of a group that would be able to take this forward. The partnership further recognised the need to improve and upgrade the partnership website and 
commenced an exercise to examine the options and costs of delivering on this. 

Prior to lockdown three locality events took place to disseminate the learning from recent serious case reviews in children’s cases. These were well 
attended from across the representative partnership agencies. 

Judgement: Amber 

 

P
age 50

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



29 
 

Risk strategy, identifying and adapting to challenges including new events, and establishing a core intelligence capacity. 

The identification of risk to effective partnership working is a core component of the approach to leadership and accountability within the safeguarding 
arrangements for the City. The independent chair produces a regular report for the statutory partners on the risks that require ameliorative action. In 
this period the risks posed by Covid have been a major consideration. The independent chair met with statutory leads on a regular basis to document 
the impact of the pandemic on safeguarding practice. This, in turn, facilitated a report to the leadership and accountability group on the following issues: 

• The impact of Covid on the demand for safeguarding services and the implications this had on staff practice, morale and availability 

• The impact of Covid on face-to-face interaction and the limitations of electronic communications 

• The impact of Covid on the engagement of key stakeholder groups with the partnership business agenda. 

In addition to Covid-specific risks, on-going issues affecting business capacity have included: 

• Implementation of the information governance protocol of the partnership 

• Agreeing an MSP performance data set 

• Tracking effective implementation of recommendations from case and thematic reviews 

• Having an effective mechanism to review and refresh partnership policies and procedures 

• Testing the quality of safeguarding service delivery on a cross-agency basis. 

Judgement: Green 

The model of local inquiry into incidents 

The legacy cases inherited by the Manchester Partnership at its inception continued to occupy significant activity in this period. Substantial inroads were 
made into the backlog of legacy cases for children and steady progress achieved in the adult arena as well. The rapid review group established guidance 
on the thresholds for reviews in the period and elaborated the variety of methods that may be employed to discharge the requirement for learning. In 
the adult arena further work was undertaken on the interpretation of the criteria for mandatory and discretionary safeguarding adult reviews. 

The securing of effective practice change recommended from reviews remained a priority for the partners, and one that required audit and evaluation. 
The Learning and Improvement Group is currently overseeing implementation of changes to practice proposed from the legacy cases concluded under 
the new arrangements, although the impact of the Covid pandemic significantly curtailed the scope of the work undertaken. 

Judgement: Amber 

 

Henri Giller 
Independent Chairperson 

  

P
age 51

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



30 
 

9 REVIEW OF MSP JOINT STRATEGIC PLAN 2020/2021 

9.1 About the plan and our priorities 

The MSP strategic plan 2020/21 sets out our vision as “Working together to create a place where all children and adults in Manchester are 

safe, free from abuse and neglect and supported to live happy and healthy lives”.  Each Executive Board also has a commitment:  
 

Adult Executive Board Commitment Children Executive Board Commitment 

Ensuring every citizen in Manchester is able to live in safety, free from 
abuse and neglect. 

Everyone who lives and works in the City has a role to play.’ 

Every Child in Manchester is Safe, Happy, Healthy and Successful. 
To achieve this, we will: Be child-centred, listen to and respond to children 
and young people, focus on strengths and resilience and take early action.’ 

 

The MSP drives progress through three distinct pillars of activity:  

 Strategic and System Leadership  

 Effective Assurance  

 A Learning System 

 

This diagram sets out our approach around our MSP priorities of: 

 Adverse Childhood Experiences 

 Child Neglect 

 Mental Health 

 Transitions  

 Complex Safeguarding  

 

The MSP is driven to achieve the very best we can, even in adverse conditions 

such as the COVID-19 pandemic. Progress against our priorities together with 

key achievements and challenges in 2020/2021 stated below will inform future 

priorities and the work of the partnership.  

P
age 52

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



31 
 

9.2 Reviewing our priorities 

The following pages detail what we set out to do and what we have achieved for each of our priority areas. 

 

Priority: Embedding our partnership approach, partnership effectiveness and independent scrutiny 
 

We set out to embed a partnership approach, focussing on Making Safeguarding Personal, Keeping in Touch, and Think Family. 

We set out to improve partnership effectiveness and independent scrutiny so that:  

 The three core partners lead strategic planning and implementation. 

 MSP arrangements serve children, young people and citizens and are resilient to change, with assurance that safeguarding 

arrangements are effective, MSP understands its safeguarding story including trends, strengths and areas for development. 

 There is a robust process for identifying and investigating learning from local and national case reviews, and SCRs, SARs processes 

are reviewed and refined to ensure learning reviews are identified, undertaken and completed promptly.   

 Learning informs the workforce developments plan for MSP multi-agency learning hub as well as influence single agency training. 

 Children, young people and families are aware of and involved in transforming safeguarding arrangements. 

 

How did we do?  

Whilst individual agencies were active in making safeguarding personal, keeping in touch and adopting a think family approach, it was agreed 

that the MSP footprint in this work was to be delayed due to the pandemic and other priorities. 

 

Embedding our partnership approach, partnership effectiveness and independent scrutiny have been intrinsic to the work of the partnership 

all year. This is reflected in the information provided in the previous sections of this report. The new arrangements were implemented and 

driven by core partners with developments to improvement in this area, such as introduction of QA group, the continued focus of the case 

review sub-groups and themed reviews undertaken either individually or with other partnerships or local areas. We know there is more that 

needs to be done to ensure children and citizens are an intrinsic part of the partnerships work, and further develop our quality assurance. 

 

 

P
age 53

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



32 
 

Priority 1: Adverse childhood experiences  

 
We set out to: We want our workforce to be ACE aware and trauma informed and to use this approach in their everyday work. Ultimately we 

want Manchester to be a trauma informed city. 

 

How did we do?  

 

 

Achievements What we can do better 

 Completed 2 train the trainer courses. Positive feedback was received from on-line courses 
which as a departure necessitated by covid restrictions.  

 ACES introduced into the GP primary care standards via training.  
 We delivered training (predominantly online) to over 1,000 delegates from a range of 

sectors, including 400 City of Manchester Police frontline responders and over 100 
individuals working with young people as part of the Healthy Schools Behind the Behaviour 
training. 

 Two primary schools participated in ‘The Art of Resilience’, a 6-week pilot project with the 
Manchester Art Gallery exploring resilience through pieces of art. The evaluation showed 
pupils increased levels of control, confidence, empowerment, identity expression, 
communication skills, connections, and positive attitudes. The Gallery was viewed as a new 
place where pupils could experience something new and express themselves. Children’s 
feedback showed high levels of enjoyment and many positive emotions. The project is being 
extended in 21-22 to 12 schools with funding from the Violence Reduction Unit. 

 Thrive Manchester (our commissioned voluntary sector partner) distributed over 200 play 
packs to schools and Sure Start centres and ran regular well-being walks, including sessions 
for people seeking refuge. 

 Delivered a series of train the trainer sessions that will enable staff from 10 registered 
housing providers to deliver the training to colleagues and act as champions within their 
organisation.  

 

 Build upon successes to embed understanding of 
ACEs and trauma informed practice to increase 
earlier intervention. 

P
age 54

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



33 
 

Priority 2a: Child Neglect 
 

We set out to:  Have a consistent approach to child neglect across the Partnership, improved outcomes for children experiencing neglect, and 

families accessing local services at the right time. Multi-agency workforce development (MSP and single agency) ensures our workforce is 

knowledgeable, confident and competent in preventing, intervening and protecting families where neglect is evident.  

 
Priority 2b: Neglect in adults including self-neglect   
 

We set out to: Have a consistent approach to adult self-neglect across the Partnership; focussing on homelessness and on carers where self-

neglect a feature.  Workforce are aware of the self-neglect pathway and related escalation processes: multi-agency workforce development; 

(MSP and single agency) ensures our workforce is knowledgeable, confident and competent in preventing, intervening and protecting Adults 

where neglect is evident. 

 

How did we do? 

 

Achievements What we can do better 

Childhood Neglect 
 Progress on the MSP Neglect Strategy, to be finalised in 2021/22.  
 Development of the toolkit included Graded Care Profile 2 and signs of safety.  
 Section 11 2019/2020 workforce developments sustained.  
 Single agency audits demonstrate improvements. 

 Neglect remains one of our biggest challenges for 
both children and adults and we know there is 
more to do to finalise the strategy and develop a 
robust delivery plan.   

Neglect in adults, including self-neglect 
 Self-neglect and hoarding strategy shared with partners promoting a consistent approach to 

improve outcomes. 
 Local practice forums disseminated learning from thematic self-neglect review and rich 

discussions helped practitioners improve practice.  
 Links made across to other learning reviews and implementation of action plans e.g. 

homelessness enriched partners practice improvements.  

P
age 55

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



34 
 

Priority 3: Mental Health  
 

We set out to: Have consistency in practice across the partnership using the Thrive framework for children’s services and in adults. Children 

requiring more help, and getting risk support and support adults who require support to engage with services. Develop our workforce to feel 

knowledgeable, confident and competent in working with children, young people, adults and their families where mental health issues feature. 

 

How did we do? 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Achievements What we can do better 

 Children's i-thrive embedded with the workforce better informed on pathways, tools and 
interventions.  

 Links made across to other vulnerabilities such as impact of domestic abuse in the home, 
neglect and ACES this approach enriched practitioner learning and enhanced application of 
the tools.  

 Adults referral pathways refined through commissioning with GMMH to improve user access 
and experience.  

 Launched the “You Matter, We’re Here’ campaign promoting how services have adapted and 
reminding people that mental health services were still open. 

 GMMH have developed a 24/7 helpline for all our service-users and their carers, staffed by 
mental health practitioners;  launched the “You Matter, We’re Here’ campaign promoting 
how services have adapted and reminding people that our services were still open. 

 Developed and delivered a range of training including: Safeguarding & Decision-making; 
Mental Capacity Act and Reflective Practice; Mental Capacity Act (MCA) and Physical Health. 

 Mental well-being will be a key area in 2021/2022 
as we continue to respond pro-actively to impact 
of Covid. 

 

P
age 56

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



35 
 

Priority 4: Transitions  
 

We set out to: Ensure MSP is assured that partners service arrangements are appropriate 

providing safe transitional arrangements. Workforce has a clear understanding MSP 

transition approach. Service delivery reflects commitment to seamless transitions. Early 

identification of lifelong service, effective transition to independence, transition across 

services and step up/down. Consider eligibility for adult services.  

 

 

 

 

 

How did we do? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Achievements What we can do better 

 The transitions planning team functions were reviewed in late 2020/early 2021 and a plan 
implemented to refocus the team on completing assessments towards preparation for 
adulthood. 

 Pathway planning tool agreed. 
 Roles and responsibilities guide agreed. 
 Transitional safeguarding further developed with complex safeguarding hub. 
 Performance framework agreed to demonstrate evidence of impact. 

 Develop a convergence of legislation in transitions 
rather than divergence. 

P
age 57

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



36 
 

Priority 5: Complex safeguarding  
 

We set out to: Ensure every child, young person and adult in Manchester with complex safeguarding needs at risk of exploitation have access 

to an established multi-agency support pathway. Effective Complex Safeguarding Hub builds on our strong foundations and applies learning to 

improve. Improve the multi-agency pathways for adults at risk of exploitation (criminal and sexual). Strategic and operational response to 

issues of DV&A are robust, comprehensive and effective. Workforce feels knowledgeable, confident and competent in working with children, 

young people, adults and their families where complex safeguarding issues feature. High standard of assurance by effectively and consistently 

reviewing services and engaging stakeholders. 

 

How did we do? 

Achievements What we can do better 

 Multi-agency complex safeguarding hub expanded resulting in capacity to identify and 
respond to complex safeguarding need enhanced. In November 2020, a GM Peer Audit on 
the hub confirmed the strong partnership working, effectiveness of the trusted relationship 
model and management oversight.  

 Effective offer to 17 year old development of a pilot testing transitional safeguarding.  
 Case formulation led by the psychologist and the GM ‘Listen Up’ Project are providing a 

wider understanding of family dynamics, barriers and greater understanding of equality, 
diversity and inclusion.  

 Focused sessions for newly qualified Social Workers on exploitation and complex 
safeguarding. Bespoke training on reporting NRM for partners and Hub staff. 

 The outcomes data shows the impact of interventions: improved numbers of young people 
who have stable accommodation, are in employment, education or training, have a trusted 
relationship and take part in positive activities. By achieving these outcomes young people 
are well equipped to manage impact of trauma they have experienced, and these outcomes 
are priorities in our partnership and intervention work. 

 The well- established partnership with AFRUCA has continued to ensure awareness raising 
in relation to modern slavery, criminal exploitation and human trafficking within 
communities is robust. Successful use of social media and digital platforms reached 4,200 
people. The impact from the sessions demonstrated that: 95% report an improvement in 
awareness whilst 96% report positively on the skills and knowledge of the Anti- modern 
Slavery Community Champions. 

 Better use of the National Referral Mechanism to 
improve outcomes for young adults at risk of 
exploitation.  

 Strengthen the offer for young adults over 18 
years at risk of/being exploited and ensuring the 
‘transition’ is ‘smooth’ and effective.  
 

P
age 58

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



37 
 

10 STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2021/22  

10.1 Strategic Priorities 2021/22 

Our strategic priorities for the next year, 2021/22, are summarised below.  We recognised early in 2021 that our three partnership priorities 

require attention for longer than one year, and we have therefore retained Neglect, Mental Health and Complex Safeguarding as our 

partnership priorities.  More detail about what we aim to achieve is provided in the 2021/22 plan itself.  

 

MSP STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 

Our strategy for results 
Think Whole Family 

Promote Trauma Informed Practice 
Learn from Practice Improvements 

 

PARTNERSHIP PRIORITIES 
(Governance: report quarterly by sponsor to Leadership and 

accountability) 

SPONSORED PRIORITIES 
(Governance: report 6 monthly by sponsor to Leadership and 

accountability) 
 

Neglect Adult and Child 
Mental Health Adult and Children 

Complex Safeguarding 

 

Mental Wellbeing (Health and Wellbeing Board) 
Transitions (Transitions Board) 

Homelessness (Homelessness Strategic Board) 
 

PARTNERSHIP EFFECTIVENESS 
(Governance: report quarterly by sponsor to Leadership and accountability) 

 

We want strong and effective arrangements to improve safeguarding outcomes for adults, children and their families through constructive 
challenge and collaborative solutions. 

 

P
age 59

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



38 
 

 

10.2 How we will achieve these  

Our priorities will be a key focus for the partnership and monitored through respective sub-groups, development sessions and reported into 

the Accountability and Leadership Board. We will: 
 

 Make best use of resources. The MSP has continued to receive ‘benefit in kind’ 

from partners as well as financial contributions listed in the table here. We will 

continue to use our funds as effectively as we can. 

 Continue to provide our training offer, further developing our training pool within 

children’s safeguarding and introduce a training pool within adults services, with a 

focus around our priorities.   

 Continue to share and help shape plans for change within individual partners as 

appropriate, undertaking ‘horizon scanning’ to determine factors in the future 

that may influence achievement of our priorities and require a different approach. 

At present, these include:  

• The role of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, impact of changes to 

administrative boundaries and organisations, for example the advent of 

Integrated Care Systems from July 2022, and those currently underway in 

GMP, are also likely to ‘reset’ the context for Manchester 

• Covid: We know the immediate and long term effects of the COVID-19 

pandemic are likely to continue to affect how services are delivered as well as the needs or our children and citizens. 

 Develop greater influence and collaboration with our citizens and staff about what we can do in these areas to improve their lived 

experiences and to draw on their knowledge and experience. 

 Define measures of success that are qualitative as well as quantitative, that tell us the impact of the work we are doing. 

 

In addition to our priorities, the MSP have a critical role to play in ensuring changes, challenges and potential enablers ensure that children and 

citizens continue to be safeguarded – every person, every day.  

 

INCOME  

2020/21 2021/22 

(PROVISIONAL) 

GMP  £63,723*   

Manchester CCG £105,000 

Housing  £9,450 

MCC   £226,608 

Probation  £4,382* 

Total  £514,181 £409,163 

EXPENDITURE   

Employee costs  £311,395 

Premises £21,230 

Transport £3,000 

Supplies and services £108,467 

Transfer to reserves 27,195 0 

Revenue Expenditure £513,588 £444,092  

*= under review/may be subject to revision 

P
age 60

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,



39 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MSP Business Unit: 
Manchester Town Hall Extension 
Albert Square 
PO Box 532 
Manchester, M60 2LA 

Tel: 0161 234 3330 (answerphone out of hours) 

Email: manchestersafeguardingpartnership@manchester.gov.uk 

Website: www.manchestersafeguardingpartnership.co.uk 

Twitter: @McrSafeguarding 

 

P
age 61

Item
 5

A
ppendix 1,

mailto:manchestersafeguardingpartnership@manchester.gov.uk
http://www.manchestersafeguardingpartnership.co.uk/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Manchester City Council 
Report for Information 

 
Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee – 25 May 2022 
  
Subject:  Overview Report 
 
Report of: Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit  
 

 
Summary 
 
This report provides the following information:  
 

 Recommendations Monitor 

 Key Decisions 

 Items for information 

 Work Programme 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Committee is invited to discuss the information provided and agree any changes 
to the work programme that are necessary.  
 

 
Wards Affected: All 
 

 
Contact Officer: 
 
Name: Rachel McKeon 
Position: Scrutiny Support Officer 
Tel: 0161 234 4997 
Email: rachel.mckeon@manchester.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 

None 

Background Documents (available for public inspection): 

Page 63

Item 7



  

1. Monitoring Previous Recommendations 
 
This section of the report contains recommendations made by the Committee, responses to them, if they will be implemented, and 
if it will be, how this will be done.  
 

Date Item Recommendation Action Contact Officer 

8 January 
2019 

CYP/19/05 
Youth and Play 
Services 

To request the needs analysis 
ranking information for the 32 
wards in Manchester. 

A response to this recommendation will 
be incorporated into a future report.   

Neil Fairlamb, 
Head of Parks, 
Leisure, Events 
and Youth 

9 October 
2019 

CYP/19/39 
Skills for Life 

To request that the Council 
work to ensure that, as far as 
possible, all settings are 
involved in Skills for Life, 
including independent schools, 
and that officers look into how 
Skills for Life could be 
incorporated into the contracts 
when Our Children are placed 
in non-Council-owned 
residential settings. 

A response to this recommendation has 
been requested and will be reported 
back to the Committee via the Overview 
report.   

Neil Fairlamb, 
Head of Parks, 
Leisure, Events 
and Youth 

6 
November 
2019 

CYP/19/48 
Youth and Play 
Services - 
Young 
Manchester 

To request that clear 
information on the availability of 
toilet facilities, for example, in 
park cafes, be included on 
signage in parks. 

A response to this recommendation has 
been requested and will be reported 
back to the Committee via the Overview 
report.   

Neil Fairlamb, 
Head of Parks, 
Leisure, Events 
and Youth 

4 March 
2020 

CYP/20/16 
Improving 
Children’s 
Outcomes 
Through 
Collaboration 

To request further information 
on how the Manchester 
University NHS Foundation 
Trust is dealing with smoking 
around its hospital sites and to 
note that the Executive 

A response to this recommendation has 
been requested and will be reported 
back to the Committee via the Overview 
report.   

Paul Marshall, 
Strategic Director 
of Children and 
Education 
Services 

P
age 64

Item
 7



  

Date Item Recommendation Action Contact Officer 

and 
Working in 
Partnership in 
a Locality 

Member for Children and 
Schools will circulate a briefing 
note on work that is already 
taking place to address 
smoking in pregnancy. 

22 July 
2020 

CYP/20/26 
Manchester's 
Transformation 
Plan for 
Children and 
Young 
People's 
Mental Health 
and Wellbeing 

To request that school 
governors be included in the 
plans for schools and that 
CAMHS and the support on 
offer be included on the agenda 
of a future Chair of Governors 
briefing. 

A response to this recommendation has 
been requested and will be reported 
back to the Committee via the Overview 
report.   

Amanda Corcoran, 
Director of 
Education 

2 
December 
2020 

CYP/20/51 
Early Help 
Evaluation 
(2015 - 2020) 

To ask officers to consider how 
Councillors could help with this 
work and to circulate a note to 
the Committee Members on 
this. 

A response to this recommendation has 
been requested and will be circulated to 
Members. 

Julie Heslop, 
Strategic Head of 
Early Help 

2 
December 
2020 

CYP/20/51 
Early Help 
Evaluation 
(2015 - 2020) 

To request that the Early Help 
Project Manager provide 
information on the number of 
families, in relation to the 
presentation slides on areas of 
the city and the sustainability of 
impacts. 

A response to this recommendation has 
been requested and will be reported 
back to the Committee via the Overview 
report.   

Ed Haygarth, Early 
Help Project 
Manager 

9 February 
2022 

CYP/22/11 
Annual Virtual 
School Head's 
Report 

To arrange a visit to Wetherby 
Young Offender Institution and 
Barton Moss Secure Children’s 
Home, in conjunction with the 
Communities and Equalities 

A response to this recommendation will 
be reported back via the Overview 
report.   

Rachel McKeon, 
Scrutiny Support 
Officer 

P
age 65

Item
 7



  

Date Item Recommendation Action Contact Officer 

Scrutiny Committee. 

9 February 
2022 

CYP/22/11 
Annual Virtual 
School Head's 
Report 

To further discuss bringing a 
joint report on knife crime, in 
conjunction with the 
Communities and Equalities 
Scrutiny Committee. 

This will be discussed with the Chair of 
the Communities and Equalities Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Rachel McKeon, 
Scrutiny Support 
Officer 

 
2.  Key Decisions 
 
The Council is required to publish details of key decisions that will be taken at least 28 days before the decision is due to be taken. 
Details of key decisions that are due to be taken are published on a monthly basis in the Register of Key Decisions. 
 
A key decision, as defined in the Council's Constitution is an executive decision, which is likely:  

 To result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the 
Council's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates, or  

 To be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the area 
of the city. 
 

The Council Constitution defines 'significant' as being expenditure or savings (including the loss of income or capital receipts) in 
excess of £500k, providing that is not more than 10% of the gross operating expenditure for any budget heading in the in the 
Council's Revenue Budget Book, and subject to other defined exceptions. 
 
An extract of the most recent Register of Key Decisions published on 16 May 2022 containing details of the decisions under the 
Committee’s remit is included below. This is to keep members informed of what decisions are being taken and, where appropriate, 
include in the work programme of the Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 66

Item
 7



  

Register of Key Decisions: 
  

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker 

Decision 
Due Date 

Consultation Background 
documents 

Officer Contact 

Early Years - Tendered Daycare 
Settings (2021/07/16B) 
 
The approval of capital 
expenditure to support the 
continued provision of high-quality 
Early Years settings across the 
City. 

City 
Treasurer 
(Deputy 
Chief 
Executive) 
 

Not before 
16th Aug 
2021 
 

 
 

Checkpoint 4 
Business Case 
 

Amanda Corcoran, Director of 
Education  
a.corcoran@manchester.gov.uk 
 

Youth Offer Strategy 
(2019/12/11B) 
 
To agree a Youth Offer Strategy 
for the next 3 years and complete 
the production of the strategy 
document 

Strategic 
Director 
(Neighbou
rhoods) 
 

13 Jan 2020 
 

 
 

Manchester 
Youth Offer 
Strategy 
 

 
 

TC451 Provision of Transport 
Service for Manchester Schools 
Swimming Programme 
(22/02/18A) 
 
To seek approval to appoint a 
company to provide transportation 
for the Manchester Schools 
Swimming Programme. The 
contract will be for 2 years 
commencing September 2022 with 
an option to extend for up to an 

City 
Treasurer 
(Deputy 
Chief 
Executive) 
 

Not before 
18th Mar 
2022 
 

 
 

Confidential 
Contract Report 
with 
recommendation
s 
 

 
 

P
age 67

Item
 7



  

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker 

Decision 
Due Date 

Consultation Background 
documents 

Officer Contact 

additional 2 years. 

Future model of care for 
Lyndene Children's Home 
(2020/07/24C) 
 
To agree a new model of 
residential, short breaks and edge 
of care support care at Lyndene 
Children’s home. 

Strategic 
Director - 
Children 
and 
Education 
Services 
 

Not before 
22nd Aug 
2020 
 

 
 

Report and 
Recommendation 
 

Sarah Austin  
sarah.austin@manchester.gov.
uk 
 

Changing Primary and 
Secondary School Formula 
(2021/12/06A) 
 
Approve starting a transition to the 
National Funding Formula (NFF) in 
advance of submission of primary 
and secondary budget to the 
Department for Education in 
January 2022. 

Executive 
 

19 Jan 2022 
 

 
 

School Budget 
Report 
 

 
 

Manchester Sensory Service 
(2022/02/04A) 
 
Proposal to take Manchester 
Sensory Service out to tender in 
order to identify new governance 
arrangements. The budget for this 
service is £2.83m 

Executive 
 

16 Mar 
2022 
 

 
 

Report and 
recommendations 
 

Amanda Corcoran, Director of 
Education  
a.corcoran@manchester.gov.uk 
 

Home to school travel for 
children and young people with 

Executive 
 

16 Mar 
2022 

 
 

Report and 
recommendations 

Amanda Corcoran, Director of 
Education  

P
age 68

Item
 7



  

Subject / Decision Decision 
Maker 

Decision 
Due Date 

Consultation Background 
documents 

Officer Contact 

SEND (2022/02/08A) 
 
Proposal to implement a new 
policy across the City for home to 
school travel for children and 
young people with SEND. 

  a.corcoran@manchester.gov.uk 
 

(TC1108) Dynamic Purchasing 
System for the Provision of 
Alternative Education for 
Manchester Schools 
(24/02/2022A) 
 
To establish a Dynamic 
Purchasing System of 
organisations to provide Alternative 
Education provision for 
Manchester Schools. 

Strategic 
Director - 
Children 
and 
Education 
Services 
 

Not before 
24th Mar 
2022 
 

 
 

Report & 
Recommendation 
 

 
 

Q20347 Consultant for EYES 
data Migration. 2019/04/25A 
 
Contract is to support Manchester 
City Council with the migration of 
their Education Management 
System away from Capita One 
towards the Liquidlogic EYES 
solution. 

City 
Treasurer 
(Deputy 
Chief 
Executive) 
 

Not before 
1st Jun 
2019 
 

 
 

Report and 
Recommendation 
 

Jon Nickson  
j.nickson@manchester.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 69

Item
 7



  

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme – May 2022 

 

Wednesday 25 May 2022, 10am (Report deadline Friday 13 May 2022)  
 

Item Purpose  Lead 
Executive 
Member 

Strategic 
Director/ 
Lead 
Officer 

Comments 

Manchester 
Safeguarding 
Partnership 

To receive regular reports on the work of the Manchester 
Safeguarding Partnership.   

Councillor 
Bridges 

Paul 
Marshall 

See May 2021 
minutes 

COVID-19 
Update 
 

To receive a verbal update on any new developments or 
significant changes to the current situation. 

Councillor 
Bridges 

Paul 
Marshall/ 
Amanda 
Corcoran 

 

Overview 
Report 

The monthly report includes the recommendations monitor, 
relevant key decisions, the Committee’s work programme and 
any items for information. 

- Rachel 
McKeon 

 

Annual Work 
Programming 
Session 

The meeting will close for the annual work programming 
session where members determine the work programme for 
the forthcoming year.  To follow a presentation from the 
Director/Lead Officers on upcoming issues and challenges 
within the Committee’s remit.   

 Paul 
Marshall/ 
Amanda 
Corcoran/ 
Sean 
McKendrick/
Rachel 
McKeon 

 

 
 

P
age 70

Item
 7



  

 
Items To Be Scheduled 
 

Item Purpose  Executive 

Member 

Strategic Director/ 

Lead Officer 

Comments 

Home School 

Transport 

To receive a report on Home School 

Transport. 

Councillor 

Bridges 

Amanda Corcoran June or July (TBC) 
Executive Report 
See November 2021 

minutes 

Children and Young 

People's Plan 2020 - 

2024 

To receive an annual report on the 

progress of this work. 

 

Councillor 

Bridges 

Paul Marshall June (TBC) 

See November 2020 

minutes 

Provision of Services 

by One Education 

To receive a report on the provision of 

services by One Education. 

Councillor 

Bridges 

Amanda Corcoran September (TBC) 

See March 2021 minutes 

Lyndene To receive a further report on Lyndene 

in 12 months’ time. 

Councillor 

Bridges 

Paul Marshall July (TBC) 

See March 2021 minutes 

Update on wellbeing 

and mental health and 

support for schools 

and settings and 

education for children 

unable to attend 

school due to ill health 

To receive a further report on this and 

to invite a representative from CAMHS 

to this meeting.   

Councillor 

Bridges 

Councillor 

Midgley 

Paul Marshall September (TBC) 

See September 2021 

minutes 

Complex Safeguarding To receive a report on how child 

sexual exploitation and child criminal 

exploitation are being addressed. 

Councillor 

Bridges 

 

Paul Marshall October (TBC) 

See October 2021 minutes 

Youth and Play To receive a further report on Youth 

and Play commissioning arrangements 

at an appropriate time. 

Councillor 

Bridges 

 

Fiona Worrall/Neil 

Fairlamb 

See October 2021 minutes 

Adoption To receive a report on adoption which Councillor Paul Marshall See November 2021 

P
age 71

Item
 7



  

includes what difference the move to 
Adoption Counts has made in 
providing stable adoption placements 
for Our Children and what happens 
when an adoption breaks down. 

Bridges 

 

minutes 

Pupil Referral Unit 
(PRU) and Alternative 
Provision 

To receive an update report in 
approximately 12 months’ time. 

Councillor 

Bridges 

 

Amanda Corcoran See December 2021 

minutes 

Elective Home 
Education 

To receive a report on Elective Home 
Education. 

Councillor 

Bridges 

Amanda Corcoran See January 2022 minutes 

Homeless Families To receive a further report in 6 months’ 
time. 

Councillor 

Rahman 

Councillor 

Bridges 

David Ashmore/ 

Mohamed 

Hussein/Paul Marshall 

See February 2022 

minutes 

Our Year To receive an update on 2022 – Our 
Year. 

Councillor 

Bridges 

 

Paul Marshall  

School Attendance 
and Attainment 

To receive regular reports regarding 
attainment and attendance.   

Councillor 

Bridges 

Amanda Corcoran  

Health Visiting To consider health visiting at a future 
meeting. 

Councillor 

Bridges 

Councillor 

Midgley 

Paul Marshall See March 2022 minutes. 

Manchester Sensory 
Support Service 
Commission 

To receive an update report at a future 
meeting. 
 

Councillor 

Bridges 

Amanda Corcoran See March 2022 minutes. 

 

 
 

P
age 72

Item
 7


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Ofsted Subgroup minutes 2 March 2022

	5 Manchester Safeguarding Partnership (MSP) Annual Report 2020/2021
	Appendix - MSP Annual Report 2020-21

	7 Overview Report

